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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors present to you, the 25™ Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts for the

year ended March 31, 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Summary of the Financial Results for the the year ended March 31, 2019 are as under:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended March ended March
31,2019 31,2018
Ind AS GAAP
Profit before Tax and Depreciation 55,230.40 25,539.04
Less: Depreciation and amortization expense 1,890.83 560.82
Profit before Tax 53,339.57 24,978.21
Less. Provision for Tax 13,320.17 5,826.11
Profit after Tax 40,019.40 19,152.10
Profit/ (Loss) brought forward 14,342.57 1,250.29
Add: Other comprehensive income (28.99) -
Add: Transfer from share options outstanding account 12.76 -
Amount available for appropriation 54,345.74 20,402.39
Appropriation
Transfer to Reserve Fund (u/s 45 IC of the RBI Act 1934) 7,998.08 3,830.42
Transfer to Debenture redumption reserve 416.54 -
Dividends (including dividend distribution tax) during the year 5,579.27 -
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 40,351.85 16,571.97

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the FY ended March 31, 2019, the Company earned a Profit after Tax of Rs. 40,019.40
lakh. In view of growing business activities, the profitability of the Company is expected to grow

in the coming years.




STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Your Company is an emerging player in retail finance business. Your company provides Personal
and SME loans products based on various financial needs of customers. Personal loan is one of the
fastest growing segments of the retail lending market. The MSME sector contributes one third of
the country’s GDP. Given the large opportunity for growth in Personal loan & SME sector,
company continues to creating differentiation and expand its operations. During the year under
review, there were no changes in the nature of business of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company had declared an Interim Dividend of Rs. 18.85/- per
Equity Share, for the financial year 2018-19.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the financial year 2018-19, Mrs. Manjari Ashok Kacker was appointed as Non-Executive
Director of the Company w.e.f. April 3, 2018 and ceased to be director w.e.f. December 4, 2018.
Ms. Preetinder Virk was appointed as Additional Director of the Company, by the Board of
Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on December 04, 2018. Being Additional Director,
Ms. Preetinder Virk hold office as such, upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nafees ahmed
(DIN: 03496241) Director, retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

All the present Independent Directors of the Company have given declaration that they meet the
criteria of independence laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act 2013.

RATING UPGRADES

Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited [ICFL] has Long term credit rating of AA+ from Brickwork
Ratings & AA rating from CARE. Company also has secured Short term Credit rating of Al+
from CRISIL, a Standard & Poor’s company & ICRA, a Moody's Investors service company,
CARE Ratings and Brickwork Ratings

REGULATORY GUIDELINES

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) is the regulator for Non-Banking Financial Companies. In accordance
with this, the Company is in compliance with all regulations pertaining to Accounting Standards,
Prudential norms for asset classification, income recognition, provisioning, capital adequacy and
credit ratings.

CHANGE IN NAME OF THE COMPANY

During the year under reveiw, the name of the Company has been changed from ‘IVL Finance
Limited’ to ‘Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited’ with effect from September 18, 2018.



SHARE CAPITAL

During the Financial Year 2018-19, the Company has increased authorized share capital from Rs.
64,00,00,000/- divided into 5,85,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 55,00,000 Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- each, to Rs. 85,50,00,000/- divided into 8,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each and 55,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, w.e.f. November 28, 2018.

The paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2019, was Rs. 61,18,80,000/-
comprising of 6,11,88,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each. During the year under
review an aggregate of 3,66,36,435 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each were issued and
allotted under the Rights Issue & Preferential Issue of the Company to Indiabulls Ventures
Limited, holding company and 55,00,000 preference shares of face value of Rs. 10/- were
redeemed by the Company.

BORROWINGS

The Company primarily sources funds through Term Loans, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
and Commercial Paper (CP). The outstanding debt (as per Ind AS) as on March 31, 2019 was Rs.
715,483.01 lakh as compared to Rs. 313,015.68 lakh as on March 31, 2018.

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

During the year under review, the Company has successfully raised Rs. 6,26,20,53,000 by issue of
Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of INR 1000/- each (“NCDs”)
through Public Issue. These NCDs are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and
BSE Limited. These NCDs have been assigned a rating of “CARE AA; Stable (pronounced as
Double A; Outlook: Stable” by "CARE Ratings” and BWR AA+ (pronounced as BWR Double A
Plus) (Outlook: Stable) by Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited.

During the year under review, the Company has also raised Rs. 175,00,00,000 by issue of Secured,
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of INR 10,00,000/- each (“NCDs”)
through Private Placement. These NCDs are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited
and BSE Limited. These NCDs have been assigned a rating of “CARE AA; Stable (pronounced as
Double A; Outlook: Stable” by "CARE Ratings”. The Company has also redeemed NCDs
amounting to Rs. 100 Crores during the year under review.

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

(i) Registered Office:

M-62 & 63, First Floor,

Connaught Place,

New Delhi - 110 001

Email: helpdesk@indiabulls.com

Tel: 011 3025 2900, Fax: 011 3015 6901
Website: www.indiabullsconsumerfinance.com

(ii) Corporate Office:

(a) “Indiabulls House”

448-451, Udyog Vihar, Phase V,
Gurugram — 122 016, Haryana

Tel: 0124 668 1199, Fax: 0124 668 1240



(b) Indiabulls House, Indiabulls Finance Centre,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road,
Mumbai — 400 013, Maharashtra

Tel: 022 6189 1000, Fax: 022 6189 1421

DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

(I) Beacon Trusteeship Limited
4C & D, Siddhivinayak Chambers,
Gandhi Nagar, Opp. MIG Club,
Bandra (East), Mumbai- 400051
Tel: 022-26558759
Fax: 022-26558761
Email: contact@beacontrustee.co.in
Website: www.beacontrustee.co.in

(IT) IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate,
Mumbai — 400 001
Tel: 022 40807000
Fax: 022 66311776
Email: itsl@idbitrustee.com
Website: www.idbitrustee.com

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT

Karvy Fintech Private Limited

(Formerly known as KCPL Advisory Services Private Limited)
Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No.31-32,

Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,

Hyderabad - 500032

Tel : 040-6716 2222,

Fax: 040-23001153

Email: support@karvy.com

Website: www.karvyfintech.com

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Being a Non Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company, your Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under review.

AUDITORS
(a) Statutory Auditors

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP (Firm Regn. No. 001076N/N500013) (a member of Grant
Thornton International), the statutory auditors of the Company were appointed by the members in
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their 23" Annual General Meeting, held on September 29, 2017, for a period of five years i.e. until
the conclusion of the 28"™ Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self — explanatory and therefore
do not call for any further explanation. No frauds have been reported by the Auditors of the
Company in terms of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Secretarial Auditors & Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder, the Company has appointed M/s A. K. Kuchhal & Co., a firm of Company Secretaries
in practice as its Secretarial Auditors, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company, for the
Financial Year 2018-19. The Company has provided all assistance, facilities, documents, records
and clarifications etc. to the Secretarial Auditors for conducting their audit. The Report of
Secretarial Auditors for the Financial Year 2018-19, is annexed as Annexure 1, forming part of
this Report. The Report is self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further explanation.

(¢) Cost Records

The Company is not required to prepare and maintain cost records pursuant to Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019,
the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been
selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company,
as at March 31, 2019 and the profit and loss of the company for the year ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that such financial controls were
adequate and were operating effectively.

f) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and
were adequate and operating effectively.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134 AND SECTION 197 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE RELEVANT RULES

The information required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 134 and Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules (to the extent applicable), not elsewhere
mentioned in this Report, are as under:



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of extract of Annual Return, as on the financial year ended March 31,
2019, pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, in form MGT-9, are given in
Annexure 2 forming part of this Report as well as available on the website of the Company at
http://indiabullsconsumerfinance.com/

BOARD MEETINGS

During the FY 2018-19, 9 (Nine) Board Meetings were convened by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the FY 2018-19, in terms of the provisions of Section 186 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company did not make any investments through more than two layers of investment
companies. Further, the Company, being a non-banking finance company and registered with the
Reserve Bank of India, loans given, guarantees provided and investments made by it, were not
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, no materially significant related party transaction was entered by the Company
with its Promoters, Key Management Personnel or other designated persons which may have
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All the related party transactions,
entered into by the Company, during the financial year, were in its ordinary course of business and
on an arm’s length basis.

Further, Your Directors wish to draw attention of the members to Notes to the financial statement
which sets out related party disclosures.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an elaborate system of internal controls commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations; it also covers areas like financial reporting, fraud control, compliance
with applicable laws and regulations etc. Regular internal audits are conducted to check and to
ensure that responsibilities are discharged effectively.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company is not required to use much of energy and
technology absorption, however in compliance of Section 134(3) read with Rule — 8 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the necessary reporting with regard to conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, is an under:

A. Conservation of Energy

The Company uses energy for its office equipment such as computers, lighting and utilities at its
work premises. As an ongoing process the following measures are undertaken to conserve energy:



a) Implementation of viable energy saving proposals.

b) Installation of automatic power controllers to save maximum charges and energy.

c) Awareness and training sessions, at regular intervals, to concerned operational personnel on
opportunities of energy conservation and their benefits.

B. Technology Absorption

The Company is investing in cutting edge technologies to upgrade its infrastructure set up and
innovative technical solutions, thereby increasing customer delight & employee efficiency. Next
Generation Business Intelligence & analytics tool have been implemented to ensure that while data
continues to grow, decision makers gets answers faster than ever for timely & critical level
decision making. The Company has implemented best of the breed applications to manage and
automate its business processes to achieve higher efficiency, data integrity and data security. It has
helped it in implementing best business practices and shorter time to market new schemes,
products and customer services. The Company has taken major initiatives for improved employee
experience and efficient Human resource management, by implementing world class HRMS
application and empowering them by providing mobile platform to manage their work while on the

go.

The Company’s investment in technology has improved customer services, reduced operational
cost and development of new business opportunities.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The Company has incurred software expenses of Rs. 892.99 lakh and marketing expense Rs.
134.74 lakh in foreign currency amounting to during the year under review.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated
robust business Risk Management framework to identify and evaluate business risks and
opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on its
business objectives and enhance its competitive advantage. It defines the risk management
approach across the Company including the documentation and reporting. At present, the
Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten its existence.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information of employees of the Company, employed by the Company through the year or
part thereof, as required to be made in terms of Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure 3.

SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATES/ JOINT VENTURES

During the financial year 2018-19, there is no subsidiary and joint ventutes of the Company.
However, Transerv Private Limited having CIN: U93090MH2010PTC211328, became associate
of the Company w.e.f. 29™ March 2019.



COMPLIANCES

During the year, the Company has complied with all applicable regulations of the Reserve Bank of
India. As per Non -Banking Finance Companies RBI Directions, 1998, the directors hereby report
that the Company did not accept any public deposits during the year and did not have any public
deposits outstanding at the end of the year.

The Company is an unlisted company as its shares are not listed on any stock exchange. However,
as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is considered as a Listed
Company as its Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued on private
placement basis and public issue basis are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and
BSE Limited. The Company has thus complied with all the applicable Regulations of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as applicable.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted various Committees to take informed decisions in the best interest of the
Company. These Committees monitor the activities falling within their terms of reference. The
details of these committees are as under.

(A) Audit Committee
Composition

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has duly constituted the
Audit Committee which currently comprises of three members, namely, Brig. Labh Singh Sitara
(Retd.) (Independent Director) as the Chairman and Mr. Alok Kumar Misra (Independent Director)
and Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal (Non-Executive Director) as members.

Terms of reference of Audit Committee

e To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information;

e To review with management, annual financial statements and ensure their accuracy and
correctness before submission to the Board;

e To review with management and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control
systems, approving the internal audit plans/reports and reviewing the efficacy of their
function, discussion and review of periodic audit reports including findings of internal
investigations;

e To recommend the appointment of the auditors and their remuneration;

e To review and approve required provisions to be maintained as per IRAC norms and write
off decisions and regulatory requirements on Balance Sheet Disclosures.

e To hold discussions with the Auditors.

e Review and monitoring of the auditor’ independence and performance and effectiveness of
the audit process.

e Examination of the auditor’ report on financial statements of the Company (in addition to
the examination of the financial statements) before submission to the Board.

e Approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related
parties.

e Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

e Valuation of undertakings and assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.



e Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters as and
when such funds are raised and also reviewing the utilization of the funds so raised for
purposes other than those stated in the relevant offer document, if any and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board in this regard.

e Review and monitoring of the performance of the statutory auditors and effectiveness of
the audit process.

e To hold post audit discussions with the auditors to ascertain any area of concern

e To review the whistle blower mechanism.

e Approval to the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing the
qualifications , experience and background etc. of the candidate.

e Review of information system audit of the internal systems and processes to assess the
operational risks faced by the Company and also ensures that the information system audit
of internal systems and processes is conducted periodically.

Meetings during the year
During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the Committee met 4 (Four) times.

(B) Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Composition

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has duly constituted the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (N&R Committee) which currently currently comprises
of three members, namely, Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.) (Independent Director) as the
Chairman, Mr. Alok Kumar Misra (Independent Director) and Mr. Nafees Ahmed (Non-Executive
Director), as members.

Terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee

e To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of all the directors on a continuing basis.

e To identify & advice Board in the matter of appointment and remuneration of
Directors/KMPs.

Meetings during the year
During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the Committee met 3 (Three) times.

Policy for selection and appointment of Directors

The (N&R Committee) has adopted a charter which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selection
of the Board of Directors, senior management and their compensation. This Policy is accordingly
derived from the said Charter.

a. The incumbent for the positions of Directors/KMP and/or at senior management, shall be
the persons of high integrity, possesses relevant expertise, experience and leadership
qualities, required for the position.

b. The Directors shall be of high integrity, with relevant expertise and experience so as to
have the diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of finance, banking,
regulatory, taxation, law, governance and general management.



c. In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the independent nature of the proposed
appointee vis-a-vis the Company, shall be ensured.

d. The N&R Committee shall consider qualification, experience, expertise of the incumbent,
and shall also ensure that such other criteria with regard to age and other qualification etc.,
as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws are fulfilled, before
recommending to the Board, for their appointment as Directors.

e. In case of re-appointment, the Board shall take into consideration, the performance
evaluation of the Director and his engagement level.

Remuneration Policy

Company’s Remuneration Policy is market led, based on the fundamental principles of payment
for performance, for potential and for growth. It also takes into account the competitive
circumstances of the business, so as to attract and retain quality talent and leverage performance
significantly. The N&R Committee recommends the remuneration payable to the Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel, for approval by Board of Directors of the Company, subject to the
approval of its shareholders, wherever necessary.

(C) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Composition

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has re-constituted
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in its meeting held on December 04, 2018, which
currently comprises of four members, namely, Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.), (Independent
Director), as Chairman, Mr. Pinank Jayant Shah, Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal and Ms. Preetinder Virk,
as members.

Terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee

To recommend to the Board, the CSR activity to be undertaken by the Company.
To approve the expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activity.

To oversee and review the effective implementation of the CSR activity.

To ensure compliance of all related applicable regulatory requirements.

Meetings and Attendance during the year
During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the Committee met 2 (Two) times.

Projects undertaken

As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)”, the Company has
undertaken projects in the area of sanitation and nutrition, as per its CSR Policy and the details
given in “Annexure 4”, forming part of this Report. The project is in accordance with Schedule VII
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules.

(D) Stakeholder Relationship Committee

Composition



In compliance with the provisions of the Section 178(5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Company
has duly constituted Stakeholder Relationship Committee w.e.f March 12, 2019. The current
composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprises of three members namely Brig.
Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.), (Independent Director), as Chairman, Mr. Nafees Ahmed and Ms.
Preectinder Virk, as members.

Terms of reference of Stakeholder relationship Committee
(i) to consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company.
(i) to approve requests for NCDs transfers and transmissions.
(iii) to approve the requests pertaining to remat of NCDs/sub division/consolidation/issue of
renewed and duplicate NCDs certificates etc.
Meetings during the year
No meeting was held during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board reassessed the framework,
methodology and criteria for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole, including Board
committee(s), as well as performance of each director(s)/Chairman. The existing parameters
includes effectiveness of the Board and its committees, decision making process, Directors/
members participation, governance, independence, quality and content of agenda papers, team
work, frequency of meetings, discussions at meetings, corporate culture, contribution, role of the
Chairman and management of conflict of interest. On the basis of these parameters, the NRC had
reviewed at length the performance of each director individually and expressed satisfaction on the
process of evaluation and the performance of each Director. The performance evaluation of the
Board as a whole and its committees as well as the performance of each director individually,
including the Chairman was carried out by the entire Board of Directors. The performance
evaluation of the Chairman, Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors was carried out by
the Independent Directors in their meeting held on January 14, 2019. The Directors expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY, AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF
THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any of its officials, which may
fall under the ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully committed to uphold and
maintain the dignity of every woman employee of the Company. The Company’s Sexual
Harassment Policy provides for protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and
for prevention and redressal of such complaints.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013:

1. number of complaints filed during the financial year - Nil
1. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year - Nil
iii. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year- Nil



Further, the Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up
to redress complaints received, if any, regarding sexual harassment.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors state that the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) respectively relating to Meetings of the Board, its Committees and the
General Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct
of its business operations. To maintain these standards, the Company has implemented the Vigil
Mechanism Policy (“’the Policy’’), to provide an avenue for employees to report matters without
the risk of subsequent victimization, discrimination or disadvantage. The Policy applies to all
employees working for the Company. Pursuant to the Policy, the whistle blowers can raise
concerns relating to matters such as breach of Company’s Code of Conduct, fraud, bribery,
corruption, employee misconduct, illegality, misappropriation of Company’s funds / assets etc. A
whistle-blowing or reporting mechanism, as set out in the Policy, invites all employees to act
responsibly to uphold the reputation of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Policy aims to
ensure that serious concerns are properly raised and addressed and are recognized as an enabling
factor in administering good governance practices.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company has been able to operate efficiently because of the culture of professionalism,
creativity, integrity and continuous improvement in all functional areas and the efficient utilization
of all its resources for sustainable and profitable growth. Your Directors wish to place on record
their appreciation of the contributions made all those who were connected with the Company, for
their support during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Pinank Jayant Shah Nafees Ahmed
Place: Mumbai Whole-time Director Director

Date: July 31, 2019 DIN : 07859798 DIN : 03496241



ANNEXURE-1

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019

Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
p p
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
Formerly Known as IVL Finance Limited)

CIN U74899DL1994PLC062407
M-62 & 63, First Floor
Connaught Place, New Delhi-01

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
(Formerly Known as IVL Finance Limited) (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings; [Applicable only to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment and Overseas Direct Investment]

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'):-

(2) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; and The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments
from time to time;



(d) The SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt

Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with

client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; [Not Applicable as there was no reportable event during the

period under review]; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018, as applicable [Not Applicable as there was no reportable event

during the period under review];

(vi) Other laws specifically applicable to the Company, namely:

(a) All the Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Circulars applicable to Non Banking

Financial Companies under the RBI Act, 1934
(b) Credit Information Companies (Regulation) Act, 2005 and Rules

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i.  Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of

India

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock
Exchanges of India Limited and BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of

the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

° The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper

balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Women Director
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried out with
requisite majority.

We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by
the Company, we are of the opinion that there are adequate systems and processes
in place in the Company which is commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.



We further report that during the audit period the Company has:

.

il

iil.

iv.

vi.

Appointed Ms. Manjari Ashok Kacker as Non- Executive Director on the Board of
the Company w.e.f. April 3, 2018, who ceased to be director of the Company w.e.f.
December 4, 2018.

Appointed Ms. Preetinder Virk as Non- Executive Director of the Company w.e.f.
December 4, 2018.

During the period under review the Authorised Share Capital of the Company
has been increased from Rs. 6,40,000,000/- divided into 5,85,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 55,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each to
8,55,000,000/- divided into 80,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and
5,500,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

During the period under review the Company has redeemed 5,500,000
redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10/- each out of Proceeds of fresh issue of
equity shares issued and allotted to Indiabulls Ventures Limited, holding
company.

During the period under review the Company has allotted 62,62,053 Secured
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000/- each, through Public
Issue and 1750 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs.
10,00,000/- each, on preferential issue basis.

During the period under review an aggregate of 3,66,36,435 equity shares of face
value of Rs. 10/- each were issued and allotted under the Rights Issue &
Preferential issue of the Company to Indiabulls Ventures Limited, holding
company.

For A. K. Kuchhal & Co.

Company Secretaries
Sd/-

(Robin Sen Giri)

Partner

C.P.19074

Date: July 30, 2019
Place: Noida

Note: This report is to be read with letter of even date by the Secretarial Auditors, which is annexed and forms an integral part of this

report.



To,

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members,

Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
Formerly Known as IVL Finance Limited)

CIN U74899DL1994PLC062407
M-62 & 63, First Floor
Connaught Place, New Delhi-01

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date, for the financial year 2018-19 is to be read along with
this letter.

Management’s Responsibility

1.

It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records,
devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management
is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of

account of the Company.

For A. K. Kuchhal & Co.
Company Secretaries
Sd/-

(Robin Sen Giri)
Partner

C.P.19074

Date: July 30,2019
Place: Noida



Annexure -2

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2019

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U74899DL1994PLC062407

Registration Date

27-0ct-94

Name of the Company

INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED (formerly IVL
FINANCE LIMITED)

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Company Limited by Shares

Address of the Registered office
& contact details

M - 62 & 63, First Floor,Connaught Place,New Delhi-110001

Whether listed company

Yes (Debt Listed)

vii

Name , Address & contact details of Registrar
& Transfer Agent, if any.

Karvy Fintech Private Limited
Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No.31-32,
Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad - 500032
Tel : 040-6716 2222 - Fax: 040-23001153
E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

SL No Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products/services Product /service of the company
1 FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION 6492 87.74%
1] PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
SINo Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABLE
SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES [SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD
1 Indiabulls Ventures Limited L74999DL1995PLC069631 Holding Company 100% [Section 2(46)
of
Companies
Act, 2013
2 Transerv Private Limited U93090MH2010PTC211328 |[Associate Company 33%|Section 2(6)

of
Companies
Act, 2013




v

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

%

change
Demat Physical Total % of Total| Demat Physical Total % of Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corporates* 24,551,559 6| 24,551,565 100%| 61,187,994 6| 61,188,000 100% 0%
e) Bank/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 24,551,559 6| 24,551,565 100%| 61,187,994 6| 61,188,000 100% 0%
(2) Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any other... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Shareholding of
Promoter
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 24,551,559 6| 24,551,565 100%| 61,187,994 6| 61,188,000 100% 0%
B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
C) Central govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
g) Flls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ii) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 1 lakhs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Public Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
C. Shares held by Custodian
for
GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grand Total (A+B+C) 24,551,559 6| 24,551,565 100%| 61,187,994 6| 61,188,000 100% 0%

*Includes 6 shares held by 6 individual nominees holding 1 equity share each on behalf of Indiabulls Ventures Limited (body corporate)




(i)

SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

SI No. Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change in
begginning of the year end of the year share holding
during the
year
No of shares % of total % of shares No of shares  [% of total % of shares |(C=B-A)
shares pledged/encumb shares pledged/enc
of the ered to total of the umbered to
company (A) |shares company (B) |total shares
Indiabulls Ventures Limited* 24551565 100% 61188000 100% 0 0%
Total 24551565 100% 0 61188000 100% 0 0%
* along with its 6 individual nominees holding 1 equity share each
(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
Sl. No. Share holding at the begining | Cumulative Share holding during
of the Year the year
No. of Shares  |% of total No of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year (01-April-18) 24,551,565 100% 24,551,565 100%
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease
(e.g. allotment)*
At the end of the year (31-March-19)
61,188,000 100% 61,188,000 100%
* Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
Date % of total % of total
[beginning of shares of shares of
the year the Date wise No. of ::he
ompany
-Apr- Increase Shares
S.No. Name (01-Apr-2018)/ No. of Shares Company /, Reason . |[(cumulative)
Decrease in (cumulati p————
end of the year shareholding ve)
(31-Mar-2019)]
12/06/2018
2|Indiabulls Ventures Limited 28,901,735 Allotment 53,453,300 100%
(Increase)
30/08/2018
4,139,700 Allotment 57,593,000 100%
(Increase)
15/03/2019
3,595,000 Allotment 61,188,000 100%
(Increase)
31-Mar-19 61,188,000 100%
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)
Shareholding at the beginning |Shareholding at the end of the
of the year year
Sl. No For each of the Top 10 Shareholders % of total % of total
No. of shares |shares of the |No of shares shares of the
company company
1INIL NIL NILINIL NIL

The entire shareholding of the Company is held by its promoter i.e Indiabulls Ventures Limited.



(v)

Shareholding of Directors & KMP

A) Shareholding of Directors
SI. Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholding Date wise X
N Increase / during the year (01-Apr-
o ) 2018 to 31-Mar-2019)
Decrease in
Date [beginni shareholding
ate [beginnin .
Name* BINNINE N\ 6. of % of total during the year |No. of % of total
of the year o
specifying the
01-Apr-2018 reasons for
( P ) Shares shares of . Shares shares
/end of the increase /
year the decrease of the
(31-Mar-2019)] Company Company
NIL
*The entire shareholding of the Company is held by its promoter, Indiabulls Ventures Limited.
B) Shareholding of KMP
Sl. Cumulative Shareholding
No Shareholding Date wise during the year (01-Apr-
: Increase / 2018 to 31-Mar-2019)
Decrease in
Date [beginnin; :
£th [beginning No. of % of total shareholding  INo. of % of total
Name* of the year during the year
01-Apr-2018 specifying the
(/end (r));the ) Shares shares of reasons for Shares shares
year the increase / of the
decrease
(31-Mar-2019)] Company Company
NIL

*None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel holds any shares in the Company. The entire shareholding of the Company is held by its promoter i.e.
Indiabulls Ventures Limited.




v INDEBTEDNESS

debted: of the C including interest /accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
deb attheb of the fi ial year
i) Principal Amount 28,909,711,154 2,500,000,000 - 31,409,711,154
ii) Interest due but not paid | - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due | - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 28,909,711,154 2,500,000,000 - 31,409,711,154
Change in Indek during the financial year
Additions 34,902,053,000 87,317,000,250 122,219,053,250
Reduction 5,632,543,257 77,565,000,250 83,197,543,507
Net Change 29,269,509,743 9,752,000,000 39,021,509,743
lthe end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 58,179,220,897 12,252,000,000 70,431,220,897
ii) Interest due but not paid | - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due | - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 58,179,220,897 12,252,000,000 - 70,431,220,897
Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
SI.No Particulars of Name of the MD/WTD/! Total Amount
Mr. Pinank Jayant Sheh
1 Gross salary (CEO & WTD)
(a) Sanlary as per provisions contained in R 26,700,000 R 29,700,000
section 17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the R 44,850 R 44,850
Income tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - - - -
as % of profit - - - -
others (specify) - - N -
5 Others, please specify- Director Seating Fee ) ) ) )
Total (A) - 29,744,850 - 29,744,850

Ceiling as per the Act

Rs. 2651.43 lakh (being 5% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)




B. Remuneration to other directors:
SI.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
Brig. Labh Singh|Mr. Alok Kumar Misra Total Amount
1 Independent Directors Sitara (Retd.) - R
(a) Fee for attending board/ 763000 872000 - - - 1635000
committee meetings
(b) Commission - - - - - -
(c) Others, please specify - - - - - -
Total (1) 763000 872000 0 0 0 0 1635000
N Mr. Ajit Kumar |Mr. Gagan Banga Mr. Nafees Ahmed Mrs. Mes. Preetinder Virk
Other Non-Executive N L
N Mittal Manijari -
Directors
Kacker
ta) Fee. for attenc?lng board/ - - - 436000 109000 - 545000
committee meetings
(b) Commission - - - - -
(c) Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (2) 0 0 0 436000 109000 0 545000
Total (B)=(1+2) 763000 872000 0 436000 109000 0 2180000
Total Managerial
Remuneration (A) + (B)
Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 530.29 lakh (being 1% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
SI. No. Particulars of ion Ke: ial P |
1 Gross Salary Mr. Manish Rustagi, Total
C y Secretary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 3,154,359 NA NA 3,154,359
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 37564 NA NA 37564
Income Tax Act, 1961(other than ESOP) 4 4
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - NA NA
2 Stock Option - NA NA -
3 Sweat Equity NA NA
4 Commission NA NA
as % of profit NA NA
others, specify NA NA
5 Others, please specify NA NA
Total 3,191,923 NA NA 3,191,923




Vil PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section of  (Brief Details of Authority Appeall made
the Description |Penalty/Punish |[(RD/NCLT/C |if any (give
Companies ment/Compoun |ourt) details)
Act ding fees
imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding |NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding |NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding |NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL




Annexure - 3

Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited (formerly IVL Finance Limited)

DETAILS REGARDING REMUNERATION TO THE EMPLOYEES AS PER RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATIONOF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

(A) Employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was not less than One Crore and Two Lakh rupees

SL. Name Designation of|  Remuneration Nature of Qualifications Date of The age of The last The percentage of Whether any such
No. the employee received employment, and experience | commenceme such employment held | equity shares held by employee is a
(Rs.) whether of the employee nt of employee | by such employee the employee in the relative of any
contractual or employment before joining the company within the | director or manager
otherwise company meaning of of the company and
clause (iii) of sub- if so, name of such
rule (2) above director or manager
1 Pinank Shah Chief 29744850 Permanent MM S 19.06.2017 40 HDFC NA NA
Executive
Officer
2 Amit Ajit Business 22207477 Permanent PGDMA 17.04.2017 43 Standard NA NA
Gandhi Head- BIL Chartered Bank
& PL
3 Sandeep Chief Risk 17355961 Permanent CA 20.07.2017 43 Bajaj Finance NA NA
Arora Officer Limited
(B) Employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand
rupees per month
SL. Name Designation Remuneration Nature of Qualification Date of The age of The last The percentage of Whether any such
No. of the received employment, sand commencem such employment equity shares held by employee is a relative
employee whether experience ent of employee | held by such the employee in the of any director or
contractual or of the employment employee company within the manager of the
otherwise employee before joining meaning of company and if so,
the company clause (iii) of sub-rule | name of such director or
(2) above manager
1 Anish Raghavan Head 11958333.37 Permanent B.Com 14.06.2018 48 Bajaj NA NA
Operations Finance Ltd
2 Prasenjeet Executive 2677813.82 Permanent MBA 01.01.2019 43 India NA NA
Mukherjee Director Infoline
Limited
3 Amiteshwar Executive 3142370.00 Permanent MBA 01.01.2019 43 Orbis NA NA
Choudhary Director Securities
Pvt. Ltd




(C) Employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in
excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of

the equity shares of the company

SL. Name Designation of | Remuner Nature of Qualifications and Date of The age of The last The percentage of Whether any such
No. the employee ation employment, experience of the commencement such employment held | equity shares held by | employee is a relative
received whether employee of employment employee by such employee the employee in the of any director or
contractual or before joining the company within the manager of the
otherwise company meaning of company and if so,
clause (iii) of sub- name of such director
rule (2) above or manager
N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
(D) The names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the Financial Year 2018-19:
SL. Name Designation of | Remunerati Nature of Qualifications Date of The age The last The percentage Whether any such
No. the employee | onreceived | employment, | and experience | commencemen | of such | employment held | of equity shares employee is a
whether of the t of employ by such held by the relative of any
contractual employee employment ee employee before | employee inthe | director or manager
or otherwise joining the company within | of the company and
company the meaning of if so,
clause (iii) of name of such
sub-rule (2) director or manager
above
1 Pinank Chief 29744850 Permanent MMS 19.06.2017 40 HDFC NA NA
Shah Executive
Officer
2 Amit Ajit Business 22207477 Permanent PGDMA 17.04.2017 43 Standard NA NA
Gandhi Head- BIL & Chartered Bank
PL
3 Sandeep Chief Risk 17355961 Permanent CA 20.07.2017 43 Bajaj Finance NA NA
Arora Officer Limited
4 | Anish Head 11958333.3 Bajaj Finance NA NA
Raghavan | Operations 7 | Permanent 12th Class 14.06.2018 48 | Ltd
5 Gaurav Collection 8523822 Permanent MMNS 08.09.2017 43 Standard NA NA
Kagdiyal Head- BIL Chartered Bank
6 Vijaykumar | Head - Credit 8348739 Permanent MMS 18.08.2017 48 HDFC NA NA
Kondiba
Narayankar
7 | Vivek Head - IT 8085900 Permanent B Com 09.10.2017 47 Birla Sunlife NA NA
Chandrash Insurance Co Ltd
ekhar
Attavar




8 Pravin V Head- Product | 7620968 Permanent 12th Class 26.03.2018 40 HDFC Bank NA NA
Mundra

9 Vipin National 7049652 Permanent MBA 08.09.2017 45 ABN Amro NA NA
Chaudhary | Collection

Manager

10 | Ramkumar | National Sales | 6973751.64 | Permanent MBA/PGDBA | 05.04.2018 44 Fresher NA NA
Gunasekar | Manager
an

Notes: -

1. Remuneration includes salary, bonus, incentive, house rent allowance, supplementary allowance, Transport allowance, Medical allowance, leave travel allowance, and other allowance paid in
cash.

2. Other Terms and Conditions: All appointments are/were in accordance with the terms and conditions as per applicable Rules and Policy of the Company



ANNEXURE 4
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs,
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or
programs.

The Company focuses its CSR efforts on such areas, where it could provide maximum benefits to
the society at large. These are, improving awareness of communities towards nutrition,
sanitation, education, health, animal welfare and rural development etc. The Company will
continue to engage with stakeholders including experts, NGOs, professional bodies / forums and
the government and would take up such CSR activities in line with the government’s intent,
which are important for the society at large. The Company may also undertake such other CSR
projects, where societal needs are high or in special situations (natural disasters etc.)

CSR Policy can be accessed as under:

2. Web-link: https://www.indiabullsconsumerfinance.com/policies/CSR Policy.pdf
3. Composition of the CSR Committee

Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.), Chairman (Independent Director)

Mr. Pinank Jayant Shah, Member (Executive Director)

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal, Member (Non-Executive Director)
Ms. Preetinder Virk, Member (Non-Executive Director)

4. Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 136,20,20,661/-

5. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 4 above): Rs. 2,72,50,000/-

6. Details of CSR spend for the financial year:
a. Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 2,72,50,000/-
b. Amount unspent, if any: Nil
¢. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:


https://www.indiabullsconsumerfinance.com/policies/CSR_Policy.pdf

(Figs. in Rupees)

1 2 3 5 6 7 8
Sector in : A(;Z(:I"(llnt Amount Cumulative Amount Spent
Sr. | CSR project or ; Projects or Programs y Spent on . Direct or
. which the (Budget) | Expenditure
No activity o ) Project or through
. s project is Project or up to 31st . .
identified d Programs Sub h implementing
covere District State Progfams- Heads: March 2019 agency *
wise
. Mumbai,
Distribution of
Sanitary Thane, Implementing
1 . Sanitation Palghar, Maharashtra 72,50,000 72,50,000 72,50,000 Agency
Napkins . .
Nashik (Indiabulls
(KUMUD) Raigad, Foundation)
Mumbai,
Thane, Implementing
2 Poshtik Ahar Nutrition Palghar, Maharashtra | 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 | Agency
Nashik (Indiabulls
Raigad, Foundation)
Total 2,72,50,000 2,72,50,000 2,72,50,000

* Indiabulls Foundation is a registered Trust established by the Company along with other companies.

7.

In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last
three financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not
spending the amount in Board’s report.

During the financial year 2018-19, the Company has contributed its entire CSR expenditure
aggregating to Rs. 2,72,50,000 to the corpus of Indiabulls Foundation, for undertaking CSR
projects, on its behalf. Contribution made covers the mandatory CSR expenditure which was
required to be made by the Company.

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of
CSR Policy, is in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

The Company understands that for it to continue to prosper over the long term, the community,
environment and society at large must also prosper. During the financial year 2018-19, the
implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy of the Company were environment friendly and in
compliance with the applicable laws, CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

For Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
(formerly IVL Finance Limited)

Sd/-
Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.)
Chairman — CSR Committee
DIN: 01724648

Sd/-
Pinank Jayant Shah
Whole-time Director & CEO
DIN: 07859798

Date: April 25, 2019
Place: Mumbai
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Independent Auditor’'s Report T +91 120 710 9001
F +91 120 710 9002

To the Members of indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited {formerly IVL Finance Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Indiabulls Consumer
Finance Limited (formerly IVL Finance Limited) {'the Company’), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 {‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the
Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
1o our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LEP is registered with limited fiability
with identification number AAC-2085 and its registered

Offices in Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Gurgaon, Hyderabad, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune office at L41 Connaught Circus, New Delhé, 110001, india
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5. We have determined the matters described below i{o be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

1. Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards Framework

Refer Note 3 for significant accounting
policies and Note 52 for reconciliation.

The standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019 are the first
financial statements prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS)
as notified by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA") under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company has applied Ind AS 101, First-
time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards. Note 52 in the financial
statements sets forth the reconciliation of
balances from previous GAAP io the new
Ind AS framework as at the transition date
and the impact of restatement on the
financial position of the comparative year
due to such transition.

This change in the financial reporting
framework  required an  end-to-end
evaluation of the potential impact on each
item included in the financial statements
including presentation thereof, additional
notes and disclosures. This evaluation
required significant audit efforts.

Considering the significance of the matter in
the current year to the financial statemenis
and the audit efforts required, this matier
has been identified as a key audit matter for
the current year audit.

Our key audit procedures in respect of the
first time adoption of Ind-AS framework

included, but were not limited to, the
following:
(a) obtaining an understanding of

management’s processes and controls to
ideniify the potential impact areas in the
financial statements due to the adoption
of Ind AS;

reviewing the implemeniation of
exemptions availed and options chosen
by the Company in accordance with the
Ind AS 101;

assessing the appropriateness of the
adjustiments made to the opening
halance sheet as at 1 April 2017,

(b)

()

assessing the appropriateness of the
adjustments recorded in the financial
statements as of and for the year-ended
31 March 2018 which were prepared in
the previous GAAP;

evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies selected by the
Company on transition to Ind AS on the
basis of our understanding of the
Company, the nature and size of its
operations and the requirements of the
relevant accounting standards under the
Ind AS framework;

(e)

(f) evaluating the adeguacy and
appropriateness  of the  financial
statements  disclosures arising on

adoption of the Ind AS to determine if
these are in compliance with the
requirements of the Ind AS; and

obtaining written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether the financial
statements comply with the Ind AS in all
respects.

2. Use of information processing system for accounting and financial reporting

The Company relies upon information
processing systems for  recording,
processing, classifying and presenting the
large volume of transactions entered into by

the Company. The Company has put in

Our key audit procedures on this matter
limited,

included, but were not to the

following:

Chartered Accountants
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Key Audit Matier

How our audit addressed the key audit
matier

place IT General Controls and automated [T
Controls to ensure that the information
produced by the Company is reliable.
Among other things, the management also
uses the information produced by the
entity’s information processing systems for
accounting and the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Since our audit strategy included focus on
entity’s information processing systems
relevant fo our audit due to their potential
pervasive impact on the financial
statements, we have determined the use of
information  processing  system  for
accounting and financial reporting as a key
audit matter for the current year audit.

understanding of the
Company's  information  processing
systems, IT General Controls and
automated IT controls for applications,
databases and operating systems
relevant to our audit;

(a) obtaining an

(b) involving IT specialists (auditor's expert)

for performance of the following
procedures:
(i) testing the IT General Controls

around user access management,
changes o IT environment and
segregation of dulies over key
financial accounting and reporting
processes; and

(i) testing the automated controls like
interfaces, configurations and
information generated by the entity's
information processing systems for
loans, interest income and other
significant financial statement ifems.

(c) obtaining written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether IT general
controls and automated {T controls are
designed and were operating effectively
during the period covered by our audit.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cennection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

7. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs {financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting =
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the {’;."

Charfered Accountants
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Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies;, making judgments and estimates that are
reascnable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error,

8. Inpreparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

10. Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opiniot. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected fo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

11. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

{b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant te the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adeguate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

{c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(d} Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainiy exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company {o cease to
continue as a going concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlymg tcansactlons and evenis in a manner that achieves fair presentation,
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12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and io communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

15. The comparative financial information for the transition date opening balance sheet as at
1 April 2017 prepared in accordance with Ind AS included in these standalone financial
statements is based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2017 prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under Section
133 of the Act, read with Ruie 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). The
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 were audited by the
predecessor auditor whose audit report dated 25 April 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion
on those standalone financial statements. The standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017 have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles
adopted by the Company on fransition {o Ind AS. We have audited these adjustments made by
the management.

16. Further, the Company had prepared a separate set of statutory financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended) on which
we issued our audit report dated 23 April 2018. These financial statements have been adjusted
for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on fransition to Ind
AS. We have audited these adjustments made by the management. Cur opinicn is not modified
in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legai and Regulatory Requirements

17. As required by section 187(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration
to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
section 197 read with Schedule V fo the Act.

18. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order’) issued by the Ceniral
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure | a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

18. Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) we have sought and, obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

{b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account

.’n—»«...,.ﬁ
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(d)

(e)

(9)

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting {(IFCoFR) of the
Company as on 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated
25 April 2019 as per Annexure |l expressed unmodified opinion;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) the Company does not have any pending litigation(s) which would impact its financial

position as at 31 March 2019;

(i) the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2019;

(iiiy there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019; and

(iv) the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank

notes were applicable for fransactions done during the period from 8 November 2016
to 30 December 2016. Therefore, these disclosures are not relevant to these
standalone financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

ut

alit Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 095256

NSy

Place: Mumbai

Date:

Charterad Accountants
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Annexure i to Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indiabulls Consumer
Finance Limited (formerly IVL Finance Limited), on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019

Annexure |

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpese of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i) (a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including gquantitative
detaiis and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

{b} The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property, plant and equipment
under which Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of
three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of ifs assets. In accordance with this program, certain Property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head ‘Property,
plant and equipment’) are held in the name of the Company.

{ii) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the
Order are not applicable.

(iif) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured o companies, firms, Limited
Liability Parinerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section
189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii}(a}, 3{iii}(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order
are not applicable.

(iv} In our opinion, the Company has not entered info any fransaction covered under Sections 185
and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable.

(V) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are nof applicable.

{vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s services. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3{vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vii)(z) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited to the appropriate
authorities, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise and value added {ax that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

{vii)  The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings fo any financial institution

or a bank or any dues fo debenture-holders during the year. The Company did not have any
dues payable to government during the year.

Charterad Accountants




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure | to Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indiabulls Consumer
Finance Limited (formerly IVL Finance Limited), on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019

(ix) In our opinion, the Company has applied moneys raised by way of initial public offer of debt

instruments and the term loans for the purposes for which these were raised, though idle funds
which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in liquid investments,
payable on demand.

(x) No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

(i) Managerial remuneration has been paid/ provided by the Company in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 187 of the Act read with Schedule V

to the Act.

{xif) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable.

{xii)  In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  During the year, the Company has made private placement of redeemable non-convertible
debentures. In respect of the same, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the
requirement of Section 42 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder. Further, in our opinion,
the amounts so raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised, though
idle funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in liquid
investments, payable on demand.

{xv) In our opinicn, the Company has not entered into any non-cash fransactions with the directors
or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

(xvi)  The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and such registration has been obtained by the Company.

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No,.

C})ﬁ( 2 RRHDIG
it Kumar i/",/"'““” e
oy

Partner {
“\

J01076N/N500013

VI/

Membership No. 095256

WES

i

Place: Mumbai N

Date: 25 April 2019 ARG b
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Annexure 1l to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date fo the members of
Indiabuils Consumer Finance Limited (formerly known as IVL Finance Limited) on the
Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Annexure H

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Indiabulls Consumer Finance
Limited (formerly known as IVL Finance Limited) (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended
31 March 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ('IFCoFR’) of
the Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls bhased on IFCoFR criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal financial controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note'’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India {ICAI". These responsibilites include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI') and deemed fo be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and cperating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporiing and the preparation of financial staiements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's IFCoFR include those
policies and procedures that (1} perfain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor's Repori of even date to the members of
Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited (formerly known as VL Finance Limited) on the
Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or dispaosition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due fo error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the
risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on
IFCoFR criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
financial controls stated in stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm

's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Sz
it Kumar PC 7N

Partner £ \‘c‘%
Membership No.: 095256 (h

Place: Mumbai R,
Date: 25 April 2019 o
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITEDR

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rs, lakh unless stated otherwise}

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Investments

Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)

Investment accounted for using equity method

Property, plant and equipment
intangible assets under development
Other intangible assets
Other non-financial assets

Total non-financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial [iabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Payables
Trade payables

{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smatl

enterprises

(ii) totat outstanding dues of creditors other than micre

enterprises and small enterprises
Other payables

{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises

(i1} total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro

enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities
Borrowings {other than debt securities)
Others financial Habilities
Tolal financial liabilities

Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilities

‘Fotal non-financial liabilities

EQUITY
Equity share capital
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Other equity

Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Naotes Asat Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 Apail 2017
4 93,078.55 88,235.57 . 145.05
3 14,538.84 6,746.4% -
4 10.50,813.31 4,00,251.2% 8,976.16
7 57,663.38 44,882.61 11,254.68
8 4,789.32 1,538.51 -
12,20,883.40 5,41,654.38 20,375.89
o 2,421.41 799.70 §19.48
10 1,685.38 1,167.86 133.38
I 3,570.43 - -
12(n} 3,093.33 1,551.04 0.7¢
12(b) | 246,07 58.04 -
12(c) 518496 3,074.68 -
13 8,688.92 2,687.06 174,44
24,890.50 9,338.38 1,128.00
12,45,773.90 5,50,992.76 21,503.89
14 209.42 679,80 -
15
. 7.20 -
5,804.12 2,765.38 -
]
1,819.40 359.99 0.37
17 1,73486.15 35,000.00 -
18 5,41,996.86 2,78,015.68 -
bl 8205575 £3,097,96 -
8,05,371.70 3,79,926.01 0.37
20 - 689.74 49.57
2t 1,067.53 221,05 938
) 2,521,81 1,307.27 549,56
3,589.34 2,18.06 608.51
a3 6,118.80 2,455.16 521.90
24 - 550.00 -
a5 4,30,694.06 1,65,843.53 20,37311
4,36,812.86 1,68,848.69 24,895.01
12,45,773.90 5,50,992.76 21,503.89

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
This is the standalone balance sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants .~
Firm's registration np:;s;ﬁb

iR

1@5@

o,

Place: Mumbai
Drate: 25 April 2019

For and on behalf of the board of directors

0

Pin ayant Shah
Whole Time Director
& Chief

Executive Officer
DIN: 07859798
Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2015

Place: Gurugzam
Date: 25 April 2019

ar
Comp

any Secretary



INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

{Formerly known as [VL Finance Limited)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

Revenue from operations

Interest income

Dividend income

Fees and commission income

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain on derecogntion of financial instruments under amortised cost category
Total revenue from operations

Other income
Total income

Expenses
Finance costs
Net loss on fair value changes
Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefits expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax credit

Total tax expenses

Profit for the year

Cther comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
Income tax expense relating to above items

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share

Basic (Rs.)

Diluted (Rs.}

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemenis

This is the standalone statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration no. .801076IN/N500013

$H

alit Kumar\_‘s")/*/ Pinank Jayant Shah
; Whole Time Director &
Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 07859798

Place: Miumbai
Date: 25 April 2019

oA
Date: 25 April 201‘5M

For and on behalf of the board of directors .

Notes For the year ended - For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
26 1,46,704.91 34,469.69
27 2,534.78 19,692.42
28 11,833.11 11,246.38
29 753.47 -
30 2,979.61 -
1,64,805.88 65,408.51
31 196.13 25.59
1,65,002.01 65,434.10
32 55,947.78 13,449.23
29 - 15,219.85
33 10,301.34 2,487.96
34 22,992.60 6,425.35
35 1,890.83 560.82
36 20,529.89 35,506.09
111,662.44 43,649.50
53,339.57 21,784.60
37
13,822.11 5,790.09
(501.94) (1,008.85)
13,320.17 4781.24
40,019.40 17,003.36
(44.57) (74.05)
15.58 25.63
(35.99) (48.42)
39,990.41 16,954,94
38
79.49 111.48
71.66 86.13

RIN: 03496241

Place: Gurugram
Date; 25 April 2019

Anish Rustagi
Company Secretary



INDIABULLS CONSUMER FEINANCE LIMITED

{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Standalone Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended 31 March 2019

A Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,890.83

Impairment on financial instruments 10,301.34

Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 358.66

(Loss)/ prafit on fair value changes (753.47)
Gain on sale of lean portfolio through assignmment (3,357.96)
Effective interest rate adjustment for financial instruments (2,102.89)
Share based payments to employees 3,453.69

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for:

Loans (660,863.45)
Other financial assets {92.83)
OGther non financial assets (4,409.32)
Derivative liabiliHes (470.38)
Trade payables 3,031.34

Other payables 45941

Other financial Habilities 18,957.79
Provisions 443.25
Other non financiai liabiltias 1,214.54

Cash used in operating activities
[ncome taxes paid (including tax deducted at source}

Net cash used in operating activities

B Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of property,plant and equipment, intangible assets under development and
intangible assets

[nvestment made in associate

Purchase of other investments (net)

Net cash used in investing activities
C Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including premium)
Repayment of preference shares (including premiwm}
Proceeds from debt securities
Repayment of debt securities
Proceeds from borrowings other than debt securities
Repayment of borrowings other than debt securities
Dividends paid (including dividend distribution tax)
Net cash flows from financing activities
D Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {(A+B+C)

E Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

F Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D + E)

53,339.57

9,990.20
63,329,77

{640,729.45)

(577,399.68)
(16,133.56)

(593,533.24)

(7.323.97)

(3,570.43)
(19,819.65)

{30,714.03)

257,224.80
(27,500.00)

786,539.71
(646,419 18)
894,099.64
(629,275.43)
(5,579.27)

629,090.27
4,842.98
88,235.57

93,078.55

For the year ended 31 March 2018

560.82
2487.96
(3.99)
15,219.85
(230.26)
2,370.97

(393,763.00)
(1,538.51)
(2,297.55)

§79.80
2,772.58
3bb.a2
63,097.96
14161
757.71

21,784.60

20,405,35
42,189.95

(329,789.78)

(287,599.83)

(5,130.34)

{292,729.97)

(5,458.95)

(55,594.27)

(61,053.22)

100,276.59
27,500.00
35,000.00

307,564.00
(28,466.88)

441,873.71
§8,090.52
145,05

88,235.57



INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as TVL Finance Limited)

Standalone Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise}

Notes :
1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the " Indirect Method " as set out in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' as
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended.

2 Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year include:

Cash in hand 0.92 042

Balances with banks:

- in current accounts 85,029.94 56,127.08
- in term deposits with original maturity of less than three months* 8,047.69 32,108.07

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 93,078.55 88,235.57

* (Rs. 556.67 lakh (31 March 2018: Rs. 32,108.07 lakhy) pledged for overdraft facilities availed by the Company

3 For disclosures relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer note 50

The accompanying notes form an integral paxt of these financial statements

This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co ELP For and on behalf of the board of directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration % OQ1076N/NS00013

S ]
W ~
Pinank Jayatif Shah anish Rustagi
‘Whole Time Director & Company Secretary
Chief Executive Cfficer DIN: (03496241

DIN: 07859798

Place; Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Gurugrarn
Date: 25 April 2019 Date: 25 April 2019 Date: 25 April 2019
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Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
{formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significanl accounting policies and other cxplanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Company overview

Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited (fermerly known as IVL Finance Limited) (‘the Campany’) is a public limited Company incorporated under the provisions of
Companies Act and is engaged in the business of financing and investing refated activities, The Company is a non-deposit accepting Nen-Banking Financiai
Company {NBFC-ND" and is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the Reserve Bank of India {“RBI”) under section 45-1A of the Reserve bank of
India Act, 1934. The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is sitizated at M-62 a 63, First Floor, Cennaught Place, New Delhi - 130001,

In accordance with the provisions of Section 4, 13 and 14 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the members of the Company at their
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 14 October 2016, accorded their approval te change the name of the Company. The Company has since received a fresh
certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name from the Registrar of Companies, Nationat Capital Territery of Delhi & Haryana dated 19 Cctober 2016
in respect of the said change. Accordingly, the name of the Company was changed from Shivshakti Financial Services Limited to IVL Finance Limited ("IVLFL” or
“the Company”).

Further, in accordance with the provisions of Section 4, 13 and 14 and other applicable provisions of the Cosmpanies Act 20%3, the members of the Compaay at their
Extracerdinary General Meeting held on 17 Seplember 2018, accorded their approval to change the name of the Company. The Company has since received a fresh
certificate of incorporation consequent upan change of name frem the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Delhi & Haryana dated 18 September
2018 in respect of the said change. Accordingly, the name of the Company was changed from IVL Finance Limited to Indiabutls Censumer Finance Limited {“"ICFL”
or “the Company”)

2. Basis of preparation

(i} Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

These Reformatied financial statements ("the Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accerdance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs {'MCA') under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies for all the periods presented in these financial
statements.

‘The financial statemeats for the year ended 31 March 2019 are the first financial statements which has beenr prepared in accordance with Ind ASand other applicable
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI').

The financial statements upto and for the year ended 31 March 2018 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standard notified under Section 133 of the Act,
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounis) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP) and other applicable guidelines issued by the RBI, which have been
adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to Ind AS.

As these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS, the Company has applied, First-time Adoption Standard (Ind AS 101) of
Indian Accounting Standards. An explanation of how the transition to ITnd AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash

flows of the Company is provided in Note 52.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 April 2019.

{ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generaliy accepted in India. Further, the financial
stalements have been prepared on histerical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair
values as explained in relevant accounting policies.

3.  Bummary of significant accounting policies

The firancial statemenis have been prepased using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarised as below, These policies are appiied
consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements, except where the Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon
transition to Ind AS,

a) Property, plant and equipment

Recogwition and initial measurcment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly
attributable cort of bringing the asvet to it working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separale asset, as appropriate, enly when it is probable that futuse economic benefits
associated with the item will fiow to the Com




Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
{formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery informatien for the year ended 31 March 20019

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurentent (depreciation uethod, useful Hves and residwal value)

Property, piant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is provided on the straight line method ever the useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part ‘C’ of Schedule O of the Companies Act, 2013,

Asset class Useful life
Computer equipment 3 years
Office equipment S years
Furniture and fixtures 10 vears
Vehicles 8 years

Depreciaticn is calcufated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the asset is sold or disposed.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recagitition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assel) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS
The Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cest on the date of transition of Ind
AS Le. 1 April 2017,

b} Intangible assets

Recognition and initial meastrenent

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties and other taxes (ather than those subsequently
recoverable from taxation authoritics), borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working conditien for
the intended use,

Subsequent measurement (mortisation methed, useful lives and residunl valie)

Intangible assets are amortised over a period of 4 years from the date when the assets are available for use. The estimated useful life (amortisation period) of the
intangible assets is arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits and is reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation
peried is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

Transition to Ind AS
The Company has eiected to measure all its intangible assets at the previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition of Ind AS i.e, 1 April
2017.

¢)  Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of intangible assets under development and are carried at cost. Cost includes
development cost, burrowing costs and other direct expenditure necessary to create, produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management, These are recognised as assets when the Company can demonstrate following recognition requirements:

. The development costs can be measured reliably

. The project is technicaily and commercially feasible

. The Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the project
. The Company has the abitity to use or sell such intangible asset

. The asset will generate probable future economic benefits.

Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use.




Indiabulls Conswmner Finance Limited
({formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

d) Revenue recognition

Inlerest incone on loans
Interest (including processing fee) income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, Additional interest/overdue charges are
recognised on realisation basis.

Tucome fron assigmuent transactions
Income from assignment transactions i.e. present value of excess interest spread is recognised when the related loan assets are de-recognised. Interest income is also
recognised on camrying value of assets over the remaining period of such assets.

Tuterest o term deposits
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate {EIR) method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised at the time when the right te receive is established by the reporting date.

Fee and commission incone
All other incorne is recognised on an accrual basis, when there is no unceetainty in the ultimate realisation/collection,

¢) Bomowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/or construction of a qualifying asset, till the time such qualifying assets become ready for its
intended use sale, are capitalised, Borrowing cots consists of interest and other cost that the Company incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Less as incurred basis the effective interest rate method.

f)  Taxation

Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except to the extent it recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax comprises the tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years, Current tax is computed in accordance with refevant tax regulations. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty refated to income taxes, if any. Current tax relating to items recognised oulside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity),

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle
the EHability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Minimum alternate tax ('MAT') credit entitlement 5 recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that nermal income tax will be
paid during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the
Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement is
written down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and corresponding
amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax loss, unwsed tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent it is
probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results,
adjusted for significant ron-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused {ax loss, Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed at
each reporling dale and are recognised to the extent that it bas become probable that future taxable profils will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the Lax rates that ate expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expecis, at the reporting date to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred {ax assets
and liabilities are offset only If there is a legally enforceable right te set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a
net basis or simultaneously. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss {either in
other comprehensive income or in equity).




Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
{formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

gl Employee benefils
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during
which services are rendered by the employee.

Other long-term employee benefils

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long-term employee benefit pfan. Liability in respect of
compensated absences becoming due and expected to availed after one year from the balance sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation performed
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in
actuarial assumplions are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such gains or losses ase determined.

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under:

Defined contribution plans

The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund, pension fund and employees state insurance scheme. The contribution made by the Company
in respect of these plans are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s
length of service and final salary. The liability recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefid plans as the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at
the reporting date. Management estimates the DBO anaually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of
the linhility are inciuded in other comprehensive income,

h}  Share based payments

Share based compensatien benefits are provided te employees via Indiabulls Ventures Limited (‘Holding Company’) Employee Stock Option Plans {ESOPs). The
employee benefits expense is measured using the fair value of the employee stock aptions and is recognised over vesting period with a correspending increase in
equity, The vesting period is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. On the exercise of the employee stock options, the
employees of the Company will be allotted Holding Company’s equity shares.

i)  Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset, Recoverable amount is higher of an assel’s net selling price and its value in use. If such receverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is iess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.
The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, If at the reporting date there is an indication that if a previously
assessed fmpairment loss no fenger exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

i) Impairment of financial assets

Loan assels
The Company follows a “three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initia recognition as summarised below;

. Stage 1 (1-20 days) includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting
date.

. Stage 2 (31-60 days) includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that do not have objective evidence of
impairment,

. Stage 3 (more than 90 days) includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets, ECL is the product of the
Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default, defined as follows:
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Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
{formerly known as TV Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accouniing policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

Probability of Default {PD} - The PD represents the likelihood of a borrewer defaulting on its financial ebligation (as per “Definition of default and eredit-impaired”
above), either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD}) of the obligation,

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company’s expectaticn of the extent of loss on a defaulied exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and
preference of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD is based on the amounts the Company expecis to be ewed at the time of default. For a revelving commitment, the Company
includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

Forward-leoking economic information is included in determining the 12-menth and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit
1oss are monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Otlier fluancial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assasses if the ceedit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly since initial zecognition. If the credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at
an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit Josses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make that assessment,
the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at
the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant
increases in eredit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition
if the financial asset is determined to have lew credit risk at the balance sheet date.

WVrite-offs

Financial assets are writtens off either partially or in their entirety to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to
impairment on financial instrument on statement of profit and loss.

k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-tezm highly liquid investments (certificate of depoesits) that are readily convertibie into

known ameunt of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, For cash flow stalemend purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

I}  Equity investment in associate

Investments representing equily inlerest in 2ssoriate is measured at cost in accerdance with Ind A5 27 ‘Separate Financial Statements’,

m) Provisions, conlingent assets and conlingent liabilities

Trovisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at
the reperting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present
values, where the lime value of money is material,

Contingen liability is disclosed for:

. Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not whaolly within the control of the Company or

- Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate

of the amount of the obligatien cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually cerlain, related asset is disclosed.

n) Operaling leases

Leases in which the lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee are classified as operating leases. Lease rental
are charged to statement of profit and loss on straight line basis except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

o) Financial instruments
A Financial instrument is any contract that gives tise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of anether entity,

Tnitial recognition and weasurement

Financial assets and financial liabi]itig,;»mﬁgr c'lgnised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are

measured initialiy at fair value adj_lw@dr“ t ﬂ§%8;§3 costs. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.
o
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Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
{formerly known as FVE Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

i Financial assets carried at amortised cost - a financial asset is measured at the amoertised cost if both the following conditions are met:

' The asset is held within a business model whose abjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash fiows, and
. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initfal measurement, such financial assels ate subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

it Investments in eguity instruments - Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or loss
{FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument by instrument basis, to classify the
same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVOCI) or fair value through profit or Joss (FVTPL). Amounts presented in other comprehensive
income arc not subscquently lransfersed 1o profit or loss. TRowever, e Cownpany transfers the cumnulative gain o1 luss within equily, Dividends on such invealments
are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment,

i, Investments in mutual funds - Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

De-recagutition of finaucial assels

Financial assets {or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) are derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’'s
balance sheet} when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, ar when the financial asset and substantially ali the risks
and rewards are transferred, Further, if the Company has aot retained control, it shall alse derecoghise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or
liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subscquent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

De-recoguition of finncial linbilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially maodified, such an exchange or madification is
treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as financial liability at the time guaraniee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently
measured at higher of;

L] The amount of loss aliowance {calculated as described in policy for impairment of financial assets)
. The amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with principles of Ind AS,

Compulserily convertible preference shares

Instruments which are entirely equity in nature such as compulsorify convertible preference shares are measured at transaction value and presented as separate line
item on the face of balance sheet.

Offsetting of financial instraments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there i5 an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise {he assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Derivative contracts

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit
and loss using mark to market information.

The Company alse enters inte certain derivative contracts {futures) to hedge risks which ave designated as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets i.e. investment
in equity instrumont (fair value hedge). For hodgo assesemont, the hedging relationship must meot conditions with respect to documantation, strategy and economic
relationship of the hedged transaction, In case of fair vatue, the change in fair value of derivative is recognised in the statement of profit and loss along with change in
fair value of underlying asset.




Indiabulis Consumer Finance Limited
{formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

p) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calcutated by dividing the net profit or loss fer the peried attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting atiributable taxes} by the
weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (interest and other finance cost associated) for the peried attributable 1o equily
shareholders and the weighted average nismber of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q} Segmenlreporting

The Company identifies segment basis the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments are the segrments for which separate financial
information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts are regularly reviewed by the CODM (‘chief operating decision maker’) in deciding how to
aliocate resources and in assessing performance.

£)  Foreign currency

Frinctional aud presentation currency

items included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment sn which the entity operates ('the
functional currency’), The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Trausacifons med balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on the foreign currency amounts at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to fenctional currency using the closing rate, Non-monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency shich are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded,
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise,

s)  Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actuat results may differ from these estimates.

Significant managemen! judgemenis

Recognition of deferred tax assels - The exient to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the futire axable
income against which the deferred tax assets can be atilized.

Business model assessment - The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a
particular business objective. This assessmenf includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The
Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reasen fer their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's continupus assessment of whether the
business model for which the remaining financial assels are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business
madel and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and
internal factars which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets,

Classification of leases - The Company eaters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or
operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but not {fimited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, [essee’s option to
purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such option, properiion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, proportion of present value of minimum lease
payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.
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Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
{formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accoenting pelicies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

Expecled credit loss {ECL") ~ The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amartised cost requires use of complex models and
significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour {e.g. likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes
significant judgements with regard to the following while assessing expected credit toss:

. Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
. Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/ market and the associated ECL; and
. Establishing groups of similar financial assels for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Provisions - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the sequirement of provisions
against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcame may be different from this judgement.

Siguificant estimafes

Useful lives of depreciable/amartisable assefs - Management reviews its estimate of the usefu lives of depreciable/ amertisable assets at each reporting <ate, based
on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation,
mortality, discount rate and anticipation of fisture salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBC amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements - bManagement applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not
available), This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

§)  Standards issued bui not yet effective

Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’

On 39 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA') has clarified that Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 7 April 2019 and it
replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet madel similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of ‘low-value' assels and short-term leases (ie., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a [essee will recognise a liability to make [ease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
undertying asset during the lease term (ie., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the inferest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements is being
evatuated,

Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income taxes

On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified Appendix C to Ind-AS 12 Income taxes - “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”. The
amendment to Ind AS 12 requires the entities to consider recognition and measurement requirements when theze is uncertainty over income tax treatments. In such a
circumstance, an entity shall recognise and measure its current or deferred tax asset or lability accordingly. The effective date of amendment is 1 April 2019. Further,
there has been amendments in relevant paragraphs in Ind-AS 12 "Income Taxes” which clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax conseguences of
dividends ir: profit or lass, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events in accordance
with Ind-A5109. The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendments and their impact on the financial statements.

Amegndment 4o Tnd A5 19, Employee benefits

On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has issued an amendment to Ind AS 19 which requires the enatities to determine current service cost using
actuarial assumptions and net interest using discount rate determined at the start of the anaual reporting pericd. However, if an entity re-measures the net defined
benefit liability (asset) as per the requirement of the standard, it shall determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period
after the plan amendment, curtzilment or setilement using the actuarial assumptions used to re-measure the net defined benefit liability (asset). The effective date of
amendment is 1 Apri 201%. The Company s evaluating the requirements of the amend ments and their impact on the financial statements,

Amendment to Ind AS 109, Financial instruments

On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) issued an amendment to Ind-AS 109 in respect of prepayment features with negative compensation, which
amends the existing requirements in Ind-AS 109 regarding termination rights irs order to allow measurement at amortized coest (or, depending on the business model,
at fate value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments, Tlis amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2619. The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendments and their impact on the financial statements.




Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited
(formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Sununary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

Amendment to Ind AS 23, Borrowing costs

On 3¢ March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") issued an amendment to Ind-AS 23 "Borrowing Costs” clarifies that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrewing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating
the capitalization rate on general borrowings. This amendment is effective for annual perieds beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The Company is evaluating the
requirements of the amendments and their impact on the financial statements,

(This space Its been intentionaily loft blank)




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al amounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

Note -4
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- Current accounts
- Bank deposits with original maturity of three months or less (refer note below)

Note -5
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months (refer note below)

Note:

As at As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
0,92 042 0.04
85,029.94 56,127.08 145.01
8,047.69 32,108.07 -
93478.55 88,235.57 14505
As at As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 0% April 2017
14,538.84 6,746.49 -
14,538.84 6,746.49 -

The amount under lien as security against overdraft facility availed, assets securitised, bank guarantee and margin meney are as follows (included above in note 4

and 5):
Particulars

Creerdralt facilities
Securitisations
Bank guarantee
Margin money

Note -6
Loans (at amortised cost)
Loans
Secured
Unsecured
Total - gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total - net

Secured by tangible assets
Secured by other assets
Unsecured
Total - gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total - net

Loans in India

(i) Public Sector

(ii) Others
Total - gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total - net

Asat As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
7,744 .43 37,625.90 -
6,212.44 - -
25303 25.07 -
1,113.34 1,203.59 -
15,095.51 38,854.56 -
Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
456,083.42 188,663.59 -
567,217.22 213,089.16 9,191,00
1,063,300.64 401,752.75 9,191.00
(12,487.33) {1,501.55) (214.84)
1,050,813.31 400,251.20 8,976.16
494,306.6% 186,935.30 -
1,776.73 1,728.29 -
567,217.22 213,089.16 9,191.00
1,063,300.64 401,752.75 9,191.00
(12,48733) (1,501.55) {214.84)
1,050,813.31 400,251.20 8,976.16
1,063,300.64 401,752.75 9,191.00
1,063,300.64 401,752.75 9,191.00
(12,487.33) (1,501.55) {214.84)
1,053,813.31 400,251.20 8,976.16

(This space has been intentionndly left blank)




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)
Asat As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017

Note -7

Investments (at fair value through profit or loss)
Investment in mutual funds

- Indiabulls liquid fund - direct growth - 10,011.31 1i,254.68
[No of units: ril (31 March 2018: 589,508.14; 2 April 2017: 708,350.68) NAV Rs. nil (31 March

2018: 1,698.25; 1 April 2017: Rs. 1,588.50) per unit]

- Indiabulls short term fund - direct plan - growth - 2,14142 -
[tNo of units nil {31 March 2018: 141,599.71; 1 April 2017 : nil) NAV Rs. nil

(31 March 2018: Rs. 1,512.30; 1 April 2017 : Rs. nil) per unit]

- Invesco India treasury advantage fund- direct plan growth - 12,507.02 -
[No of units nil {31 March 2018: 511,333.46; 1 April 2017: nil} NAV Rs. nil

(31 March 2018: Rs, 2,445.96; 1 April 2017: Rs, nil) per unit]

- JM equity fund-monthly dividend cption - 4,280.31 -
[Ne of units nil {31 March 2018: 35,793,030.38; 2 April 2017: nil) NAV: Rs. nil

(31 March 2038: Rs. 11.95; 1 April 2017: Rs. nil) per unilj

- JM Balanced fund - Direct - annual dividend - 8,704.41 -
[Neo of units ndl {31 March 2018: 43,853,812.56;  April 2017 : nif) NAV: Rs. nil

(31 March 2018: Rs 19.85; 1 April 2017: Rs. nil) per unii]

- Indiabulls Income fund- direct plan - growth 1,021.49 - -
[MNo of units: 6,246,745.81 (31 March 2018: nil; 1 April 2017 : nil} NAV: Rs, 16.35

(31 March 2018: Rs nil; 3 April 2017: Rs, nil) per unit)

- Indiabulls Savings fund- direct pian - growth 5,087.83 - -
[No of units 487,557.47 (31 March 2018: nil; 1 April 2017 : nil) NAV: Rs. 1043.53 (31 March

2018: Rs nil; 1 April 2017: Rs. nil) per unit]

- Indiabulls Ultra Short term fund- direct plan- growth 10,168.86 R -
[No of units 544,893.74 (31 March 2018: nil; 1 April 2017 : nil} NAV Rs. 1,365.21 (31 March

2018: Rs nil; 1 April 2017: Rs. nil} per unit]

- Invesco India Liquid Fund- direct plan growth 5,005.60 - -
Mo of undts 194,585.50 (31 March 2018: ndl; 1 April 2017 : nil) NAV Rs. 2,572.44 (31 March

2018: Bs nil; 1 April 2017: Rs. nil} per umnit}

- UTI Liquid Cash Plan - direct growth plan 2,503.02 - -
[No of units 81,778.44 (31 March 2018; nil; 1 April 2017 ; nil) NAV Rs. 3,060.74 (31 March

2018: Rs nil; 1 April 2017: Rs, nil} per unit]

- M Large Cap Fund - dividend cption 31,247.94 - -
[No of units 116,17,193.26 {31 March 2018: nil; 1 April 2017 : nil} NAV Rs. 26.91 {31 March

2018: Rs nil; 1 April 2017: Rs. nil} per unit}

« Axis Liquid Fund -~ direct growth 159 - -
[No of units 76.54 (31 March 2018: nil; 1 April 2037 : nil) NAV Rs. 2,073.52 (31 March 2018: Rs

nil; 1 April 2017: Rs. nil) per unit]

- Aditya Birla Sun life liquid fund- growth- direct plan 159 - -
[Ne of units 528,17 (31 March 2018: nil; 1 April 2017 : nil) NAV Rs, 300.44

(31 March 2018: Rs nil; ¥ April 2017 Rs. niil) per unit]

- HDFC Liquid Fund - direct plan- growth 159 - -
[No of units 43,14 {31 March 2018; nil; 1 April 2017 : nil) NAV Rs. 3,678.29

(31 March 2018; Rs nil; 1 April 2017; Rs, nil) per unit]

- 1CICI Prudential Liquid Fund - direct plan- growth 159 - -
[Ne of units 547.05 (31 March 2018: nil; 1 April 2017 : nil} NAV Rs, 27642

(31 March 2018: Rs nil; 1 April 2017: Rs. nil) per unit]

- Kotak Liquic direct plan growth 1.59 " -
[No of units 41.92 {31 March 2018: nil; 1 April 2017 : nil) NAV Rs. 3,734.33

(31 March 2018: Rs nil; 1 April 2037: Rs. nil) per unit]

- Reliance Liquid Fund - direct plan growth plan 1.59 - -
[No of units 34.78 (31 March 2018 nil; 1 April 2017 ; nil) NAV Rs, 4,561.89

{31 March 2018: Rs ni§; 1 April 2017 Rs. nil) per unit]

- SBI Liquid fund direct growth 1.59 .
[No of units 54,19 (31 March 2018: nil; T April 2017 : nil) NAV Rs. 2,928,57

(31 March 2018; Rs nil; 1 April 2017; Rs, nil) per unit}

Investment in debt securities

25 {31 March 2018: nil, 1 April 2017: nil) non convertible debentures of Housing Development 2,617.51
Finance Corporation Limited

Investment in equity instruments
Nil (31 March 2018: 820,000, 1 April 2017: nil} equity shares of Rs. 10 each, tully paid-up of
Reliance Industries Limited

- 7,238.14 -

57,663.38 44,882.61 11,254.68




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al amounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

Investments outside India
Investments in India
Total

Note -8

Other financial assets

Interest spread on assigned assets

Sacurity deposits

Deposit for mark to market margin account
Loan to employees

Others recoverable

As at As at As af
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
57,663.38 44,882.61 11,254.68
57,663.38 44,882.61 11,254.68
Asat As al As al
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
2,980.68 - -
BBG.43 396.58 -
581.76 1,097.78 -
160.49 44.15 -
179.96 - -
4,789.32 1,538.51 -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

Note -9

Current tax assets (net)

Advance income-tax (including tax deducted at source}
[Net of provision for taxation]

Note -10

Deferred tax asseis (net)

Deferred tax assets

- Impairment loss allowance

- Disallowance under Section 40A(7) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
- Disallowance under Section 438 of the Income-tax Act, 1961
- Lease equalisation reserve

- Depreciation and amoriisation

« Minimum alternative tax credit entitlement *

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost

- Share based payments

Deferred {ax liabilities

- Financial assets measured at fair value through prefit and loss

- Derecognton of financial instruments measured under amortised cost category
- Financial asseis measured at amortised cost

- Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

- Depreciation and amertisation

Deferred fax assets (nef)

Movement in deferred fax assels

Particulars

Deferred fax assets

- Impairment Ioss allowance

- Disallowance under Section 40A(7) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
- Disallowance under Section 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961

- Lease equalisation reserve

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost

- Share based payments

Deferred tax liabilities

- Derecogntion of financial instrurnents measured under amortised cost
- Depreciation and amortisation

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Asal As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
2,421.41 79970 819.48
2,421.41 799,70 B19.48
Asal As at Agat
31 March 2019 31 March 218 1 April 2017
2,915.90 148.55 61.11
27148 55,00 2.16
108,56 21,50 0.55
109,90 39.97 -
- - 0.28
- . 47.09
- 459.38 -
2,059.42 844.35 23.81
- - L.62
1,041.57 - -
1,15255 - -
1,029.04 140,07 -
549.72 260.82 -
1,685.38 1,167.86 133.38
Recognised
As at Recognised in other As at
31 March 2018 in profit and loss comprehensive 31 March 2019
income
148.55 2,767.35 - 2,915.90
55.00 200.90 15.58 27148
1,50 80,06 - 101.54
39.97 69,93 - 109.90
459.38 {1,611.93) - (1,152,55)
84435 1,215.07 - 205942
. {1,041.57) - (1,041.57)
(260.82) (288.90) - (549.72)
(140.07) (BBB.57) - {1,029.04)
1,167.66 501,94 15.58 1,685.38

(This space s been intentionally lefl blank)



INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summoary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

{All amounts in Rs, lakh unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

Deferred tax assets

- Impairment loss allowance

- Disatlowarice under Section 40A(7) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
- Disaflowance under Section 43B of the Income-fax Act, 1961

- Lease equalisation reserve

- Depreciation and amortisation

- Minimum alternative tax credit entitlement *

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost

- Share based payments

Deferred lax liabilities
- Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
- Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

* Expiry date of minimum alternative tax credit

Expiry financial year (as per income-tax Act, 1961}

1 April 2025 - 31 March 2026
1 April 2026 - 31 March 2027
Less: MAT credit atilised during the year

Note -11
Investment in associate (at cost)

2,137,981 (31 March 2018: Nil, 1 April 2017: Nil) equity shares of Rs, 10 each, of Transerv Private

Limited

Proportion of swnership interest in associate as at 31 March 2019

Particulars

Transerv Private Limited

Notes

Recognised
Asat Recognised in ather Asat
1 April 2017 in profit and loss comprehiensive 31 March 2018
income
61.11 87.44 - 148.55
216 27.21 25.63 55.00
0.55 2095 - 21.50
- 39.97 - 3997
0.28 (26110 - (260.82)
47,09 (47.09) - -
- 459,38 - 459.38
2381 820.54 - 844,35
{1.62) 162 - «
- (140.07) - (140.07}
133.38 1,008.85 25,63 1.167.86
Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
- 13.32 13.32
- 33.77 33,77
- 47.09) -
B - 47.09
Asat As at Asal
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
3,570.43 " -
3,570.43 - -
Country of Proportion of
incorporation ownership
India 33.00%

a) Equity investments in associate are measured at cost as per the provisions of Ind AS 27 an "Separate Financial Statements'.

b) The Company had acquired 33% equity stake of “Transerv Private Limited" (hereinafter referred 1o as "Investee”) on 29 March 2019. The Company exercises significant
influence over the investee and accordingly, the same has been accounted for as an "Associate” as per the provisiens of Ind AS 28 "Investments in associales and joint

venture”.

{Tiis space has beew inlentionatly left binnk)



INBIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Alt amounts in Rs. lJakh unless stated othersvise)

Asat As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Note -13
Other non-financial assels
Capital advances 1,807.61 215.07 -
Advances to suppliers 1,717.76 §19.59 174.44
Prepaid expenses 3,13258 1,054.03 -
Balange with government authorities 203097 598,37 -

8,688.92 2,687.06 174.44

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and sther explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All mmounts in Rs, lakl nnless stated otherivise)

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
Notional . Notional " Notional -
amounts Fair value amounts Fair value amounts Fair value
Naote ~14
Derivative financial instruments
Tart 1
Equity linked derivatives - - 7,356.54 444,61 - .
Index linked derivatives 12,282.23 209.42 4,804.65 23519 - -
Total derivative financial instruments 12,282.23 209.42 12,161.19 679.80 - -
Part 11
Included are derivatives held for hedging and risk
management purpose as follows:
i. Fair value hedging
- Equity linked derivatives - - 7,356,54 44461 - -
fi. Undesignated derivatives
- Index linked derivatives 12,282.23 209.42 4,804.65 235.19 - -
Total derivative financial instruments 12,282.23 209,42 12,161.19 679.80 - -
Asat Asaf Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Naote -15
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalf enterprises (refer note 49) - 7.20 -
Total outstanding dues of credifors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 580412 2,765.38 -
5,804.12 277258 -
Asal As at Asat
31 Maxch 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Note -16
Other payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 4%) - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,819.40 359.99 0.37
1,819.40 359.99 0.37
As at As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Nole -17
Debt securities (at amorfised cost)
MNon- convertible debentures (refer note a below) 78,486.15 10,000.00 -
Commercial papers (refer note b below} 95,000.00 25,000.00 -
Total 173,486.15 35,600.00 -
Debt securities in India 173,486.15 35,000.00 -
Debt securities outside India - - -
Total 173,486.15 35,000.00 -
Note:
a) Secured redeemable non converlible debentures (payable at par wnless otherwise stated) include:
Pasticulars Asat As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
8.50% redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value Rs, 10 Iakh each redeemable on 29 March 2019 in one
instalment. - 10,000.00 -
10.6% redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value Rs. 10 lakh each redeemable on 29 March 2021 and is
repayable in four equated instalments falling due in year 2020-21. 16,911.86 - "
10.75% redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value Rs. 1,000 each redeemable on 8 May 2021 in one 37,0027 : :
instalment. '
10.75% (Effective yield) cumulative redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value Rs. 1,000 each
. N 2,438.96 - -
redeemable on 8 May 2021 in one instalment
10.40% redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value Rs. 1,000 each redeemable on 8 May 2022 in one 318204 ) }
instalment. ’
10.90% redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value Rs. 1,000 each redeemable on 8 May 2022 in one 74314 } )
instalment. [
10.90% (Effective yield} cumulative redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value Rs. 1,000 each
redeemable on 8 May 2022 in one instalment. 233258 - i
10,50% redeemable non-convertible debenhures of face value Rs, 1,000 each redeemable on 8 March 2024 in one
instalment. +617.97 - -
11.00% redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value Rs. 1,000 each redeemable on 8 March 2024 in one
instalment. ’
11,00% (Effective yield) cumulative redeemable non-tonvertible debentures of face value Rs. 1,000 each
redeerable on 8 March 2024 in one instalment. -

on present and future loan assets of the Company, including all monies receivable for the principal amount and interest thereﬁ\l%)
e

H =
Non-convertible debentures is secured by way of first ranking pari-passu charge on the current assels {including mvestmenxgsjf"a the Company, boj 'Zpgesent and future; and




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounis in Rs, okl unless sfated olfierwise)

b) Unsecured commereial papers:

Particulars As al Asat Asat
31 Maxch 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
This amount is repayable in one instalment in June 2019, 5,000.00 - -
This amount is repayable in one instalment in May 2019, 45,000.00 - -
This amount is repayable in one instalment in May 2019, 12,500.00 - -
This amount is repayable in one instalment in June 2019, 20,000.00 - -
This amount is repayable in one instalment in May 2019. 12,500.00 - -
This ameunt is repayable in one instalment in May 2018. - 25,000.00 -
Commercial paper carries inferest in the range of 8.75 % p.a. to 9.50% p.a.
As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017

Note -18
Borrowings (other than debf securities) (at amortised eost)
Term loans

- From banks - secured ¥ 499,699,583 277,957.03 -
Loans from related parties

« Holding Company - unsecured @ 27,520.00 - -
Loans repayable on demand from banks - secured 14,729.66 - -
Vehicle loans from bank - secured 47.32 58.65 -
Total 541,996.86 278,015.68 -
Borrowings in India 541,996.86 278,015.68 -
Borrowings outside India - - -
Total 541,996.86 278,015.68 -
i) Term loans from banks includes:
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

This loan is repayable in 13 quarterly equated instalments commencing from December 2017 with Tast instalment falling due in vear 2,68314 4,209.13
2020-21.
This loan is repayable in 16 quarterly equated instaiments with moratorium period of 1 years from the date of disbursement. Loan 8,743.47 9,9589.82
repayment commencing from December 2018 with last instalment falling due in year 2022-23.
This loan is repayable in 13 quarterly equaled instalments cornmencing from December 2017 with Jast instalment falling due in year 9,404.88 14,764.35
2020-21,
This loan is repayable in one instalment in April 2619, 14,999.58 14,985.47
This loan is repayable in 2 equated annual instalments with moratorium period of 48 months from the date of disbursement. f.oan 29,844.49 29,801.66
repayment commencing from September 2021 with last instalmeat falling due in year 2022-23.
This loan is repayable in 2 equated annual instalments with moratorium period of 48 months from the date of disbursement. Loan 29,837.22 29,783.03
repayment commencing from Seplember 20621 with last instalment falling due in year 2022-23,
This loan is repayable in 2 equaled annual instalments with moratorium period of 36 months from the date of disbursement, Loan 49,982.12 49,976.07
repayment commencing from September 2021 with last instalment falling due in year 2022-23.
This loan is repayable in one instalment in September 2019, 99,918.47 99,487.32
This loan is repayable in one instalment in September 2018. - 24,960.18
This loan is repayable in 2 equated annual instalmenis with moratorium period of 48 months from the date of disbursement. Loan 14,954.67 -
repayment commencing from Jure 2022 with last instalment falling due in vear 2023-24,
This loan is repayable in 13 equated quarterly instalments with first instalment due at the end of 3 months from the date off 7,671.26 -
disbursement. Loan repayment commencing from September 2018 with last instalment falling due in year 202122,
This loan is repayable in 12 equated quarterly instalments which shall commence from the quarter end during which the limit is 16,378.12 -
disbursed. Loan repayment commencing from December 2018 with last instaiment falling due in year 2021-22.
This loan is repayable in one instalment in September 2019. 39,000.00 -
This loan is repayable in 18 equated monthly instalments after moratorium of 7 months. Loan repayment commencing from May 2019 99,184.41 -
with last instalment falling due in year 2020-21.
This loan is repayable in five years with instalments of Rs. 7,500.00 lakh each to be paid for the first six instalments and instalments of} 42,379.84 -
Rs. 1,000.00 lakh each to be paid for the last five instalments, Loan repayment commencing from January 2019 with last instalment
falling due in year 2023-24.
This loan is repayable in five years with instalmenis of Rs. 5,460.00 lakh each to be paid for the first six instalments and instalments of] 36,282 44 -
Rs, 728.00 fakh each to be paid for the last five instalments. Loan repayment commencing from July 2019 with last instaiment fafling
due in year 202425,
This loan is repayable in 3 equated instalments of Rs. 2,500 lakh each at the end of 3rd, 4th and 5th year after a moratoriumn period of 2 7,435.57 -
YeATs.
Total 499,699.88 277,957.03
a. Secured by way of first pari-passu charge over loans and advances, receivables and current assels (including cash and cash equivalents, .investments in debt mutual funds
and liquid mutual funds} and future book debts, (\0‘33“7' 0‘3:;(3 .,
b. Interest rate on term loans varies from 8.00% to 20.75% per annum. ;‘.}'\*f éz‘g’

{ii) Loan from related party carries interest rate of 14.90% per annurm and shall be repayment within five years as per agreementf o
{iii) Vehicie loans are secured against hypothecation of the vehicles purchased. Such loans are repayable in equated monthly insfalnents for a period ?gu five years. Vehicle
loans carries interest rate of 7.75% per annum. H

.95
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LEMITED
(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and ather explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

{All mmonnts in Rs, laklt unless stated otherwise)

Note -19
Others financial liabilities
Interest accrued on debt securities

Interest accrued on borrowings other than debt securities {7

Liability against securitised assets
Temporarily overdrawn bank balances as per books
Payable towards assignment transactions

(Titis space Jas been infentionaily left bHank)

As at Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
410.00 932 -
795.65 4.78 -
40,828,55 - -
38,932.52 63,083.86 -
1,089.03 . -
82,055.75 63,097.96 -




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2012

(All mmounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

Note - 24

Current tax labilities (net)

Provision for taxation

[Net of tax deducted at source/advance tax]

Nete -21

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for gratuity
Provision for comipensated absences

Note -22

Other non-financal liabilities
Statutory liabilities

Advance from customers
Lease equalisation reserve

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Marxch 2018 1 April 2017
- 689.74 49,57
- 689.74 49.57
As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Mazch 2018 01 April 2017
776.90 158.92 7.49
200.63 62,13 1.89
1,067.53 221,05 9.35
As at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
1,128.11 1,191.79 549.56
1,078.18 - .
314.52 11548 -
252181 1,307.27 549,56

(This space lias been imtentionally left blank)




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al atirotntts i Rs, bakh einless stafed otherwise)

Note -23
Equily share capital
Asat As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount

A. Authorised
Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 80,006,000 8,000.00 58,500,000 5,850.00 5,219,000 52190

£0,000,000 8,000.00 58,500,000 5,850.00 5,219,000 521.90
8. Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 61,188,000 £,118.80 24,551,565 2,455.16 5,219,000 521.90

51,158,000 6,118.80 24,551,565 2455.16 5,219,000 521.90

C. Reconciliation of the shares oulstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporling year

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Equily shares No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 24,551,565 245516 5,219,000 521.90
Add: Issued during the year 36,636,435 3,663.64 19,332,565 1,933.26
Outstanding af the end of the year 61,188,000 6,118.80 24,551,565 2,455.16

D. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the helders of equity shares will be entitled to received remaining assets of the Company, after distzibution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

E. Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares and holding company:
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at1 April 2017

Particulars

No. of shares % of Holding  No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding
Indiabulls Ventures Limited and its nominees 61,188,000 100% 24,551,565 100% - -
Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited and ils nominees . - - - 5,219,000 100%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

F. The Company has not issued any benus shares during the current year and five years immediately preceding current year,

G. There are no shares issued pursuant to centract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus issue and bought back during the
last five years.

Note -24
Instruments entirely equily in nature
As at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
A, Authorised
Preference shares of face value of Rs, 10 each 5,500,000 550.00 5,500,600 550.0¢ 4,781,000 478.10
5,500,000 550,00 5,500,000 550.00 4,781,000 478.10
B. Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
- - 5,500,000 550.00 - -
Convertible preference shares of face value of Rs, 10 each
- - 5,560,000 SR - -

o~
RS T




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMETED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited}

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanalory informalion for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amotents in Rs. lakh unless stated otheriweise)

C. Keconciliation of the converlible preference shares outstanding al the beginning and at ihe end of the reporting year

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Nao. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,500,000 550.00 - -
Add: Issued during the year - 5,500,000 550.00
Less: Adjusted during the year* {5,500,000% (550.00)
Quistanding at the end of the year - - 5,500,000 550.00

* During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has modified the terms of these convertible preference shares {rom being compulsorily convertible to optionally
convertible on 12 March 2019. Later on these preference shares were redeemed on 15 March 2019 at the transaction value.

D. Terms/rights attached to convertible preference shares

The Company hias only ane class of preference shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. These can be converted in equity shares at any time up to 20 years from date
of issuance at equal ratio. These shares carry 0.001% as dividend percentage which is to be paid as and when declare and apprave by Board of directors,

E. Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at1 April 2017
No. of shares % of Holding _ No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares Y of Holding
Indiabuils Distribution Services Limited - - 5,500,000 100% - -

F. No preference shares have been bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding 31 March 2019.

G. No preference shares have been issued for consideration other than cash during the peried of five years immediately preceding 31 March 2019,

As at Asat Asat
Note -25 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Other equity
Statutory reserves 1218491 4,186.83 356,41
Securities premium 370,534.35 143,923.19 18,626.86
Capitat redemption reserve 100.¢c0 100.00 100.00
Debenture redemption reserve 416.54 - -
Share options outstanding account 5,380.70 243977 68.79
Retained earnings 40,351.85 14,342.57 1,218.05
Other component of equity 1,225,71 851.17 -
430,694.06 165,843.53 20,373.11

Nature and purpose of other reserve:

Statulory reserves
The reserve is created as per the provision of Section 45(IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. This is a restzicted reserve and no appropriation can be made from this
reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of India.

Securities premium
Securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The account can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013,

Capifal redemption reserve
The same had been created in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013 on account of redemption of preference shares.

Debenture redemption reserve

The Companies Act 2013 requires Companies that issue debentures to create as debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until such debentures are redeemed.
The Company is required to transfer a specified percentage (as provided in the Companies Act, 2013) of the outstanding redeemnabie debentures te debenture redemption
reserve. The amount credited to the debenture redemption reserve may not be utilised except to redeem debentures. On redemption of debentures, the amount may be
Irans{erred from debenture redemption reserve to retained earaings.

Share options outstanding account

The reserve js used to recognise the fair value of the options issued to employees of the Company under Holding Company's ESOP's plan. - $“000V 03,;',: 23
5y O

Other component of equity f 5:37 o

The reserve has been created against initial measurement of financial guarantee (given by Holding Company) at fair value. f X B
L0



INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rs, lakh uniess stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note -26
Interest income
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans 144,772.20 33,886.15
Interest on deposits with banks 720.78 263.44
Other interest income 80.82 20,50
On financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss
Interest from investrnents:
- Bonds 856.07 236.95
- Commercial deposits 100.80 -
- Commescial paper 174,24 62.65
146,704.91 34,469.69
Note -27
Dividend income
Dividend on investments 2,534.78 19,692.44
2,534.78 19,692.44
INote -28
Fees and commission income
Fees and commissicn 11,833.11 11,246.38
11,833.11 11,246.38
Note -2%
Net gain/{loss) on fair value changes
Net gain/(foss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments 1,407.53 {14,954.38)
- Derivatives (654.06) (265.47)
Total net gain/{loss) on fair value changes 753.47 {15,219.85)
Fair value changes
- Realised 703.61 {6,269.44)
- Unrealised 49.86 (8,950.41)
Total net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 753.47 {15,219.85)
Note -30
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category
Gain on sale of loan portfolio through assignment 3,157.96 -
Loss on derecognition of financial gnarantee liability {178.35) -
2,979.61 -
Note -31
Other income
Net gain or ineffective portion of hedges 196,13 25.59
196.13 25,59
Note -32
Finance costs
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest on borrowings 42,465.93 12,983.66
interest on debt securities 10,938.78 211.51
Other interest expense 1,003.19 240.57
Other borrowing costs 1,539.88 13.49

55,947.78

13,449.23
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amonnits in Rs. lnkh unless stated otheriwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 Mazch 2018
Note -33
Impairment on financial instruments {measured at amortised cost}
Impatrment allowance cn loans 10,301.34 1,286.71
Loans written off - 1,201.25
10,301.34 248796
Note - 34
Employee benefits expenses
Salaries and wages 18,981.50 3,960,71
Contributien to provident and other funds* 282,50 55.51
Share based payments to employees 3,453.6% 2,370.97
Staff welfare expenses 27491 38.36
22 992 60 6,425.55

*There are issues relaking fo the application of the Ilonourable Supreme Court's (SC) judgement dated 28 February, 2019 on Trovident Fund., The

management is examining these issues to identify the potential effects, if any, on compliance with the Provident Fund Act, 1952.

Note - 35
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 601.74 146.59
Amortisation on intangible assels 1,285.09 413.83
1,8%0.83 560.82
Note - 36
Other expenses
Repair and maintenance 139.80 66.33
Communication expenses 1,483.80 233.30
Printing and stationery 163.38 39.38
Lease rent {refer note 40) 2,798.63 811.89
Legal and professional charges {inclusive of Auditors remuneration (Refer note below)] 11,572.38 2,269.87
Rates and taxes 66.33 65.44
Electricity expenses 228,08 6215
Business promotion 9i5.48 1,383.65
Office maintenance 884,37 344.10
Travelling expenses 42423 50.68
Software expenses 1,1635.60 13334
Corporate social responsibility expenses’ 272,54 6.56
Donations - 1.50
Bank charges 363.15 7.07
Web hosting charges 37.11 28.91
Misceilaneous 15.61 1.92
20,529.8% 5,506.0%
Note;
Auditor's remuneration
As auditor 67.99 10.00
For taxation matters - -
For company law matters - -
For gther services - -
For reimbursement of expenses 1.89 -
#Corporate social responsibility expenses
The Company spent Rs. 272.54 Lakh {31 March 2018 Rs. 6.56 Lakh), towards corporate scciai responsibility (CSR) activities as follows:
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2019

31 March 2018

{a) Amount spent on

Construction/acquisition of any asset “ -
On purpose other than above* /" 05 27254 6.56
(b) Amount unpaid S _&Q.O - -
Total f,:g? 272.54 6.56
*Contribution towards donation/corpus fund paid to Indiabulls Fuundaﬁo?i‘
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All ammountis in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwisc)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note -37
Tax expense
Current tax 13,622.11 5,790.09
Deferred tax credit (501.94) (1,008.85)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 13,320.17 4,761.24

The major components of tax expense and its reconciliation to expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to the Company is 29.12% (31
March 2018: 28.84%) and the reported tax expense in statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Accounting profit befere tax expense 53,339.57 21,784.60
Income tax rate 29,12% 28.84%
Expected tax expense 15,532.48 £,282.68

Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense

Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed 357.51 52.81
Tax impact on items exempt under income tax {1,465.61) (5,679.52)
Income chargeable under capital gain (difference of tax rates) {1,459.94) 431149
Impact of change in tax rate 409.95 (182.42)
Others (54.22) (43.80)
Tax expense 13,320.17 4,781.24

Change in tax rate

The increase of the Indian corporate tax rate from 25% to 30% is effective from 1 April 2019 (basis turnover criteria). As a result, the relevant deferred tax
balances have been remeasured.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2012 31 March 2018

Note - 38
Earnings per equity share
Net profit for the year 40,019.40 17,003.36
Nominal value of equity share {Rs.) 10 10
Weighted-average number of equity shares for basis earnings per share 50,346,686 15,252,024
Effect of dilution:

Preference shares* 5,500,000 4,450,411
Weighted-average number of equity shares used to compute diluted earnings per share 55,846,686 19,742,435
Basic earnings per share {Rs.) 7949 111.48
Diluted earnings per share [Rs,) 71.66 86.13

* During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has modified the terms of these convertible preference shares from being compulsorily convertible to
optionally convertible on 12 March 2019, Later on these preference shares were redeemed on 15 March 2019 at the transaction value.
o " (M«
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited}

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(AH aniounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise}

Note -39

Employee benefits
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 19 on Employee Benefit as under :

Defined contribution plans

The Company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at predetermined rates to a registered provident fund administered by the
Government of India, which invests the funds in permitted securities. Both the Company and employees make predetermined
contributions to the Provident Fund. The contributions are normally based on a certain proportion of the employee's salary. Amount of
Rs. 282,50 lakh (31 March 2018 Rs, 55.51 lakh) pertaining to employers' contribution to provident and other fund is recognized as an
expense and included in "Employee benefits expense".

Defined benefit plans

A Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. The liability of Gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Risks associated with plan provisions

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future

Salary increases valuations will also increase the Hability.

If Plan is funded then assets liabiliies mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the

Investment risk . . ; .
fvestment os discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Mortality & disability {\Cti:l?:ll- deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the
liabilities.

Withdrawals Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at

subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

{i} Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

. As at As at As at
Pasticulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March2018 | 1 April2017
Present value of obligation 776.90 158.52 7.49
Fair value of plan assets - - -
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 776.90 158.92 7.49

(if) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:
For the year
Particulars ended Faor the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current service cost 22744 35.62
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - 2336
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 19.88 1.77
Interest income on plan assets - -
Net impact on profit {before tax) 247.32 60.75
(iif) Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income:
For the year
Particulars ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 { 31 March 2018
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised during the year (44.57) (74.03)




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

{(iv) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

W)

{vi))

(viif)

For the year
Particulars ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Presead value of delined benefil obligation as at he beginning of year 158.92 749
Acquisition adjustment 32723 26.61
Current service cost 227.44 35.62
Interest cost 19.88 177
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - 2336
Benefits paid (1.15) (10.00)
Actnarial loss/{gain} on obligation
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial {gain}/loss on arising from change in financial assumption 35.01 (7.21)
Actuarial {gain)/loss on arising from experience adjustment 6.56 81.26
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 776.90 156.92
Actuarial assemptions
For the year
Particulars ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discounting rate 7.65% 7.80%
Future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (years) ol 60
Withdrawal rate
Up to 30 years 3.00% 3.00%
From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00%
Weighted average duration 22,39 2220

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of JALM (2006 - 08)

Gratuity is payable to the employees on death or resignation or on retirement at the attainment of superannuation age. To provide for

these eventualities, the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate table,

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

For the year

Particulars ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Tmpact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 776.90 158.92
- Imypact due to increase of 0.50 % (59.16) (11.54)
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 65.72 1275
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 776.90 158.92
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 67.13 13.04
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (60.85) {11.89)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these is not calculated
Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not

applicable.

Maturity profile of defined benefit abligation At | s 2018
0to1year 14.63 3.34
1 to 2 year 871 211
210 3 year 849 205
3 to 4 year 8.99 179
4 to 5 year 10.43 2.59
5 to 6 year 14.43 2.68
6 year onwards 711.22 144.27




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

Other long-term employee benefit plans

The Company provides for compensated absences to its employees. The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued
compensated absences and atilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-
term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders
the services that increase this entitfement. The scheme is unfunded and liability for the same is recognized on the basis of actuarial
valuation. A provision of Rs. 157.15 lakhs (31 March 2018: Rs. 48.57 lakhs) for the year have been made on the basis of actuarial valuation
at the year end and debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Note -40

Operating lease as lessee

The Company has taken office premises at various locations under operating lease arrangements. The contractual future minimum lease
payment obligation in respect of these leases are as under:

As at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

QOperating lease expenses recognised during the year 2,798.63 811.89 -

Minimum lease obligations:

- Less than one year 3,347.71 1,389.75 -

- Between one and five years 12,666.62 547723 -

- More than five years 8,322.68 3,030.26 -
24,337.01 9,897.24 -

Note -41

Capital commitments
(to the extent not provided for)
As at Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Estimated amount of contracts remaining te be executed on capital

account and not provided for 115264 12604 B
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

{All aounts i Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

Note -42
Financial instruments
A Financial assets and liabifities

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as follows:

Particulars Note Asat As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments measured at

Fair value through profit and loss Note -7 57,663.38 44,882.61 11,254.68
Financial assels measured at amortised cosk
Cash and cash equivalents Note -4 93,078.55 88,235.57 145.05
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents Note -5 14,538.84 6,746.49 -
Loans Note -6 1,650,813.31 400,253.20 B976.16
Security deposits Note -8 886,43 396.58 -
Other financial assets Note -8 3,902.89 1,141,93 -
Total 1,220,883.40 541,654.38 20,375.89
Financial liabilities measured at fair valune
Derivative financial instruments MNote - 14 204.42 6/9.80 -
Financial liabilities measured at amoriised cost
Trade payables Note -15 5,804.12 2,770.58 -
Other payables Note -16 1,819.40 356.99 0.37
Debt securities (including interest accrued) Note -17 173,896.15 35,009.32 -
Borrowings (including interest accrued) Note ~18 542,792,51 278,020.46 -
Cther financial liabilities Note ~19 80,850.10 63,083,846 -
Total 805,371.70 379,926.00 0.37

B Fair values hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in the financial statements and ate grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are
defined based on the observabifity of significant inputs to the measuremeant, as follows;

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market;

Level 2 Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {ie. derived from prices} observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and
Level 3: Inpuis which are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs).

B.1 Financial agsels and liabilities measured al fair value - recurring fair value measurements

As at 31 March 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assefs
Investments at fair value through profit and toss

Debi securities 2,617.51 - - 2,617.51

Mutual fund 55,045.87 - - 55,045.87
Financial labilities at fair valuc through profit and Ioss

Derivative liability 209.42 - - 209.42
As at 31 March 2018 Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments at fair value through profit and loss

Quoted equity instruments 723814 - - 7,238,114

Mutual funds 37,644.47 - - 37,644.47
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and Inss

Derivative liability 679.80 - - 679.80
As all April 2017 Level 1l Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investmenis at fair value through profit and loss

Mutual funds 11,254,683 - - 11,254.68
Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value

T

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include: 2 SNy

(a) the use of quoted market prices for quoted equity instruments and debt securities.

(b) the use of quoted market prices for derivative contracts at balance sheet date. For hedge related disclostres, refer note 45.
(c) the use of net asset value for certificate of depesits and mutual funds on the basis of the statement received from investee party.
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Summary of significant accounling policies and other explanatary information for the year ended 31 March 2013
(All mimownits i Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

B.2 Fair value of instruments measured at amottised cost

.

Fair value of instruments measured at amortisec cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3 inputs:

. As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at1 April 2017

Particulars n = T T . :
Carrying value Fair value {Camying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 93,078.55 93,078.55 88,235.57 88,235.57 145.05 145.05
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14,538.84 14,538.84 6,746.49 6,746.49 - -
Loans 1,050,813.31 | 1,076,891.84 400,251.20 402,274.75 8,976.16 9,011.34
Security deposits 886.43 83336 396.58 383.63 - -
Cther financial assets 3,902.89 3,932.1% 1,141.93 1,141.93 - -
‘Total 1,163,220.02 1,189,274.78 496,771.77 498,782,37 9,121.21 9,156.39
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 5,804.12 5,804.12 277258 277258 - -
Other payables 1,819.40 1,819.40 359.99 359.59 037 0.37
Debt securities 173,896.15 173,896,15 35,009,32 35,009.32 - -
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 542,792.51 542,792.51 278,020.46 278,020.46 - -
Other financial liabilities 80,850,10 §2,062.39 63,083.86 63,083.86 - -
Total 805,162.28 806,314.57 379,246.21 379,246.21 £.37 o 0.37

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values for other assets and liabiities:

(i) The fair values of the Company’s fixed interest bearing loans are determined by applying discounted cash Rows ('DCF’) method. For variable rate interest-bearing loans,
carrying value represent best estimate of their fair value,

(if} The fair values of the Company fixed rate interest-bearing debt securities and borrowings are determined by applying discounted cash flows (DCF') method, using discount
rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. For variable rate inferest-bearing debt securities and borrowings, carrying value represent best
estimate of their fair value as these are subject fo changes in underlying interest rate indices as and when the changes happen.

Note =43
Financial risk management

Risk Management

As a Non-Banking Financial Institution (NBFC), the Company is exposed to various risks that are related to lending business and operating environment. The principal
objective in Company 's risk management processes is to measure and monitor the various risks that Company is subject to and to follow policies and procedures to address
such risks. Company 's risk management framework is driven by Board and its subcommittees including the Audit Committee, the Asset Liability Management Committee and
the Risk Management Comemittee. Company gives due importance fo prudent lending practices and have implemented suitable measures for risk mitigation, which include
verification of credit history from credit information bureaus, personal verification of a customer's business and residence, technical and legal verifications, conservative loan to
value, and required term cover for insurance. The major types of risk Company face in businesses are liguidity risk, credit risk, interest rate risk. This note explains the souzces
of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

In order te avoid excessive concentration of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfofio, Identified
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

A) Credit risk

a

Credit Risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability to perform such obligation is impaired resulting in economic loss
to the company. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loan assets and other financial assets. The
Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk contrals.

Credit risk management

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed
time period as per contract, The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Internat credit rating is performed for each class of financial
instruments with different characteristics. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inpuis and factors
specific to the class of financial assets.

(i) Low credit risk

(iiy Moderate credit risk

(iily High credit risk

The company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Nalure Assels covered Basis of expected credit loss

Low credit risk Cash and cash egquivalents, other bank balances, loans and other|12 month expected credit loss
financial assets

Moderate credit risk Loans Life time expected credit loss

|High credit risk Loans Life lime expected credil loss or fully provided for
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Financial assels that expose the entity to credit risk*

Particulars As at As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
(i) Low creditrisk
Cash and cash equivalents 93,078.55 88,235.57 145.05
Bank balances other than above 14,538.84 6,746.49 -
Loans 1,047,549.20 400,297.21 0.00
Securily deposits 886,43 396.58 -
Cther financial assets 3,902.89 1,141.93 -
(iiy Moderate credit risk
Loans 7,338.51 1,247.57 9,191.00
(ii) High creditrisk
Loans 8,412.93 207,97 -

* These represent gross carrying values of financial assets, without netting off impairment loss allowance.

Cash and rash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents wnd bank doposite is managod by enly placing highly rated doposits from banks and financial institutions across the couniry.

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans to employees, security deposits, Interest spread on assigned assets and other recoverable. Credil risk related to

these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continucusly.

Loans

The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the borrower's through internal systems and project appraisal process (wherever applicable) to assess the credit risk and
define credit limils of borrower, thereby, limiting the credit risk to precalculated amounts. These processes include a detaifed appraisal methodology, identification of risks and
suitable structuring and credit risk mitigation measures. The Company assesses increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts loan assets that become past due and

default is considered to have occurred when amounts receivable become one year past due.
The major guidelines for selection of the client includes:

* The client’s income and indebtedness levels

* The client must possess the required KYC documents

» Client must agree to follow the rules and regulations of the Company

¢ Credit bureau check - In order to deal with the problem of over extension of credit and indebtedness of the client, the Company undertakes credit burenu checks for every
client. The credit bureau check helps the Company in identifying clients with poor repayment histories and multiple loans,

Category* Inputs

Assumptions

1. Historical data as per Industry trends

2. Supplemental external information that could
affect the borroswets behaviour

3. Discount rate is based on internal rale of return on
the loan

Corporate borrowers

Retail borrowers

1. Recoverability assumptions for stage 3 loan assets and related assessment
with value of collateral
2. Management judgement is applied fo determine the cconomic scenarios and
the application of probability weights

* The Company has used forward looking information in form of GDP growth rate and unemployment rate specific 4o the sector.

Assels are wrilten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written: off and attempts to

enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in statement of profit and loss,

b) Credit risk exposure
i) Expected credit lusses for financial assets other than loans

Estimated gross s Carrying amount
As at 31 March 2019 carrying amg:unt Expected credit neﬁ?ilfpairmenl
at default losses provision
Cash and cash equivalents 93,078.55 - 93,078.55
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14,538.84 - 14,538.84
Security deposits 886,43 - 886,43
Other financial assets 3,902.89 - 3,902.89
Estimated gross . Carrying amount
As at 31 March 2018 carrying aniunt Exp e:;::g:rﬂht ne.:rghfpairmenl
at default provision
{Cash and cash equivalents 88,235.57 - 88,235.57
Bank balances other than above 6,745.49 - 6,746.49
Security deposits 396.58 - 396.58
Olher finarcial assels 1,141.95 - 1,141.93
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Estimated gross N Carrying amount
As at 1 April 2017 carrying amount Expected credit net of impairment
fosses . .
af default provision
Cash and cash equivalents 145,05 - 145.05

i} Expected credit loss for loans
Deflnition of defauli:

The Company considers default in ali cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. 'The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month
ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of default, Exposure at default and Loss given default.

Changes in the gross carrying amount in relation to loans from beginning to end of reporting peried;

Parliculars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2017 - 9,191.60 .
Assets originated 638,582.64 - -
Net transfer between stages (£,499.20) 1,275.78 22341
Assets derecognised (excluding write offs) (236,786,22) {8,021.31) (15.44)
Write - offs - {1,197.91) -
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 400,297.22 1.247.56 207.97
Assets originated and acquired 984,562.09 - -
Net transfer between sfages (18,592.38) 8,883.39 9,708.98
Assets derecognised (excluding write offs) (318,717.71) (2,792.46) (1,504.02)
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2019 1,047,549.22 7,338.49 8,41293
Reconciliation of Ioss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporling period:

Reconciliation of loss allowance Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Loss allowance on 1 April 2017 - 214.84 -
Increase of provision due to assets originated during the year 2,682.05 - -
Net transfer between stages (482,66 31410 167.56
Loss allowance written back {991.22) {403,64) (0.48)
Write - offs - - -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2018 1,209.17 125.30 167.08
Increase of provision due to assets originaled and purchased during the year 4,135.16 - -
et transfer between stages (8,233.84) 2,187.09 5,946.75
Loss allowance written back 7,197.24 (14.33) (332.29)
Wrile - offs - - -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2019 4,402.73 2,298.06 5,781.54

¢} Concentration of [oans
Prudent risk management involves the minimisation of concentration risk by divessifying the loan portfolio, Setting up exposure limit for particular industry, sector,
geographical area, product, etc. is essential to reduce the concentration of the loan portfolio.
Particulars Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Corporate borrowers 324,382.83 195,522.23 8,49018
Retail borrowers 738,917.81 205,830.52 700.82
Tolal 1,063,300.64 401,752.75 9,191.00
€) Leans secured againsi collateral
Company's secured portfolio has security base as follows:;
Value of foans
Particulars Asat Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 Aypril 2017
494,306.69 186,935.30 -
Secured by tangible assets
1,776.73 1,728.29 -

Secured by other assets

Wherever required, the Company holds other lypes of collateral and credit enhancements, such as cross-collateralisation on other assets of the borrower, pledge of securities,
guarantees of promoters/ proprietors, hypothecation of receivables via escrow account, hypothecation of receivables in other bank accounts, etc.,

The Campany does net physically pessesses properties or other assets in its normal course of business but makes efforts toward recovery of outstanding amounts on delinquent
loans. Once contractual loan repayments are more than 90 days past due, possession of property may be initiated. Possessed property is disposed of in the manner prescribed

under the regulatory guidance to recover outstanding debt.
A g\i\-’.";" 5’[\‘;/7
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al amorents i Rs, lakh uiless staled olirenoise}
B} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with #ts financial linbilities that are settled by delivering cash or
anather financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficieat liquidity to meet its Iabilities when they are

due,

The Company maintains flexihility in funding by

maintaining availability under commitied credit lines. Management monitors the Company's (through Asset Liabitity

Management Committee) liquidity positions (also comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities), matching of the financial assels and financial liabilities position and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows, The Company alsa takes into account liquidity of the market in which the entity operates,

(i) Financing arrangements

The Company had access to the following funding facitities:

As at 3T March 2019 Total facility Undrawn

- Expiring within one year 24,859.00 6,129,34

Total 20,853.00 6,129.34

As at 31 March 2018 Total facility Undrawn

- Expiring within one year 45,000.00 45,000,00

Total 45,060.00 45,000.00
(ii) Malurities of financial assets and liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company financial essets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based or their contractual maturities,

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash fiows:

As at 31 March 2019 LES;;::“ 1 1-3 years More than 3 years Total

Finaneial asseds

Non-derivatives

Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 101,765.21 6,801.76 - 108,566.97

Loans 462,508.54 645,308,514 279,328.07 1,387,145.15

Investments 57,663.38 - - 57,663.38

Other financial assets 1,489.81 2,064.51 161315 5,357.47

Total undiscounted financial assets 623,426.94 654,174.81 281,141.22 1,558,742.97

Financial liabilities

Non-derivatives

Debt Securities 102,640.69 69,346.54 24,160.97 196,148.20

Borrowings other than debt securities 289,273.11 197,885.68 88,897.04 576,055.53

Trade payables 580412 - - 580492

Other payable 1,819.40 - - 1,819,40

Other financial liabilities 62,006,72 1%,011.22 68.87 81,086.81

Derivatives (net settled)

Index linked derivatives 209,42 - - 209.42

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 461,753.46 286,243.44 113,126.88 861,123.78

Net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) 161,673.48 367,931,37 168,014.34 697,619.19

As at 31 March 2018 Les;et::n 1 1-3 year More than 3 years Total

Financial assets

Non-derivatives

Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 95,182.16 - - 95,182.16

Loans 167,370.35 297,696.57 117,398.91 512,465.83

Investments 44,882.61 - - 44,882.61

Other financial assets 1,150.24 60.11 595.38 1,805.73

Total undiscounted financial assets 308,585.36 227,756.68 117,994.29 654,336.33

Financial liabilities

Non-derivatives

Dbt securities 36,295.58 - - 36,295.58

Borrowings other than debt securities 5703119 160,173.00 123,508.00 341,112.19

Trade payables 277258 - - 2,772.58

Other payahle 359,99 - - 359.99

Other financial liabilities 63,083.86 - - 63,083.86

Perivatives (net settled)

Index linked derivatives 67980 - - 679.80

Tolal undiscounled financial liabilities 160,223.00 160,173.00 123,508.00 444 304.00

Nef undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) 148,362.36 67,583.68 (5,913.71) 210,032.33
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All anrounts i Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)

As at T April 2017 Les;:::n 1 1-3 year More than 3 years Total
Financial assets

Non-derivatives

Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 145,03 - - 145,05
Loans 3,124.07 306,12 7,294.67 10,724.86
[nvesitnents 15,254.68 - - 11,254.68
Total undiscounted financial assets 14,523.80 306.12 7,294.67 22,124.5%
Financial liabilities

Non-derivatives

Other payable 0.37 - - 0.37
Total undiscounted financial Habilibes 0.37 - - 037
Net undiscounted financial assels/(liabilities) 14,523.43 30612 7,294.67 22,124.22

C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of a financial institution wiil be adversely affected by movements in market zates or prices such as

interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads and/or commeodity prices resulting in a loss to earnings and capital,

The Company’s expesure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk and price risk

a) Interest rate risk
i) Liabilities

The Company’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. As at 31 March 2019, the Company is exposed to changes in market interest

rates borrowings other than debt securities at variable interest rates.

Interest rale risk exposiire
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars As at As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2027

Fixed rate liabilities

Debt securities 173,486.15 35,000.00 -
Variable rate liabifities

Borrowings other than debt securities 541,996.86 278,015.68 -
Tatal 7£5,483.0L 313,015.68 -
Sensitivity
Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss in interest rates.
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Inlerest sensifivity*
Interest rates - increase by 0,50% (2,709.98} (1,390.08)
Interest rates - decrease by 0.50% 2,709,938 1,390.08

* Holding all other varinbles constanf

ii) Assets

The Company’s term deposits and commercial paper/deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits, They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as
defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying ameunt nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates,

¢) Price risk
i} Exposure

The Company’s exposure price risk arises from investments held and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss. To manage the price risk arising from

investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets.
ii} Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increases/ decreases of the index on the Company's profit for the period:

Impact on profit affer fax

Particalars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Mutual funds

Net assels value ~ increase by 5% 2,752.29 188222

Net assets value - decrease by 5% (2,752.29) (188222

Quoted equity instruments

Value per share - increase by 5% . 361,91

Value per share - decrease by 5% - {361.91)

Quoted debt securities

Market price - increase by 5% 130.88 -

Market price -~ decrease by 5% {130.88) -




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounls in Rs, laklwniess stated othersoise}

Note -44

Capital management

The Company’s capital management objectives are

- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

- to comply with externally imposed capital requirement and maintain strong credit ratings
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes info account
the subordination levels of the Company’s various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the undetlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Particubars As at As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Net debt* 623,610.11 224,794.21 {145.05)
Tolal equity 436,812.86 168,848.69 20,895.01
Net debt lo equify ratio 1,43 133 -

* Net debt includes debi securities + borrowings ather than debt securities + interest accrued - cash and cash equivalents,

(This space has been intentionally leff blank)
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITEEY

{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounling policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rs. Jakk unless stated otherwise)

w

Note -45

Fair value hedges

Risk management strategy

The use of derivatives can give rise to price risk. The use of derivative instruments is subject to limits, authorities and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of management.
The fimits, authorities and monitoring systems are periodically reviewed by management and the Board. The price risk on derivatives is mitigated by changes in the valuation
of the underlying assets, liabililies or transactions, as derivatives are used only for risk management purposes. The Company uses derivative instruments as part of its
management of exposure to fluctuations in market ptice of equity invesiments. The derivative transactions are normally in the form of futures and these are subject to the
Company guidelines and policies.

Hedge relationship

The Company has done investment in shares of Reliance Industries Limited. The Company enters into selling of future of Reliance Industries Limited to hedge its price risk,
Gains and losses on these hedye transactions are substantially offset by the amount of gains or losses on the underlying assels, Net gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss,

Hedge ratio is the relationship between the quantity of the hedging instrument and the quantity of the hedged item. In the case, total principal payments under the transaction
is hedged with futures of the equivalent amount and at the same dates. Hence the entity hedge 100% of its exposure on the transaction and is considerad highly effective. The
Company has enlered inlo rifty future contracts which provide an economic hedge to a risk compenent of a transaction,

Other kedge related disclosures
The fair value of the Company's derivative pasitions recorded under derivalive financial liabilities are as follows:

31 March 2019

Change in value of

Type of hedge and risk

Change in fair value of hedging

Malurity date

hedged itemused as a

Hedge ratio

instrument basis of recognising
hedge effectiveness
Equity futures (loss)/gain (2,633.93) 27 September 2018 2,830.05 11
. S . Amount charged to
Particulars Camrying al{mu.nlt .nf derivative Cim:ymg amount of statement of profit and
liabilities investments
loss
Investments - - 196.13
31 March 2018
Change in value of
Type of hedge and risk Change m_f:ur valuc of hedging Matarity date hedg‘ed item use.d.as a Hedge ratio
instrument basis of recognising
hedge effeclivencss
Equily fuhsres (loss)/gain (440,30) 24 April 2018 465.89 11

Tarticulars

Carrying ampunt of derivative
liabifities

Carrying amount of
investments

Ameunt charged to
statement of profit and
loss

Investments

(440.30)

7.238.14

25.59

{This space has been indentionally left Dlank}




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

{Formerly known as I'VL Finance Limited}

Summary of significant acceunting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All mmonats I Rs, lakh wnless stated otierteise)

Note -46

Maturily analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected o be recavered or settled. Derivatives have been classified te mature
and/or be repaid within 12 months, regardless of the actual contractual maturities,

Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April1,2017
ASSETS Within 12 months  After 12 menths  Within 12 months ~ After 12 months ~ Within 12 months  After 12 months
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 93,078.55 - 88,235,57 - 145.05 -
f;:ils‘::l::;ces other than cash and cash 832640 621244 6.746.49 _ R )
Loans 453,013.62 597,799.69 04,344.03 305,907,117 8,976.16 -
Invesiments 57,663.38 - 44,882.61 . 1%,254.68 -
Other financiat assels 1,961.01 2,828.31 1,141.,93 396.58 - -
614,042.96 606,840.44 235,350.63 306,303.75 20,375,89 -
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {net) 2,421.41 - 795.70 - 819.48 -
Deferred 1ax assels (net) - 1,685.38 - 1,167.86 - 133.38
Investment accounted for using equity method - 3,570.43 - - - -
Property, piant and equipment - 3,093,323 - 1,551.04 - .70
Intangible assets under development - 246.07 - 58.04 - -
Other intangible assets - 5,184.96 - 3,074,68 - -
Other non-financial assets 7,673.39 1,015.53 2,360.24 326.82 174.44 -
10,094.80 14,795.70 3,159.94 6,178.44 993,92 134.08
TOTAL ASSETS 624,137.76 621,636,14 238,510.57 31248219 21,36%.81 134.08
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Fimancial Habilities
Derivative financial instruments 209.42 - 679.80 - - -
Payables
Trade payables
(5} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises ) - 7.0 B - )
ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other
ghzm micro anterpriges and small enterprisas 580412 - 2.765.38 - - )
Other payables
(i) total vutstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises B - - - - )
ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other
Eh)an micro enterp:’iges and small enterprises 181940 ° 35999 - 07 )
Debt securities 67,480.00 10600615 35,000.00 - - -
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 255,657,35 286,339.51 33,055.83 244,959.85 - -
Other financial Eabilities 63,212.37 18,843.38 63,097.96 - - -
394,182.66 411,189.04 134,966.16 244,959,85 0.37 -
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax Hiabilities {net) - - 689,74 - 49.57 -
Provisions 2239 1,044,13 4.33 216.72 025 913
OGther nen-financial liabilities 2,266.54 255.27 1,273.20 34.07 549.56 -
2,289.93 1,299.40 1,967.27 250,79 599,38 913
TOTAL LIABILITIES 396,472.59 412,488,45 136,933.43 245,210.64 599.75 913
Net 227,665.17 209,147.69 101,577.14 67,271.55 20,770.06 12495
L S ANY
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al muonnists in Rs. Takh nndess staled otherwise)

Note -47

Operating segments

A, General information

The Company operates in a single reportable segment ie. financing and investing related activities, which has similar risks and returns for the purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operating
segments’, is considered to be the only repertable business segment. The Company derives its major revenues from financing activities and its customers are widespread, Further,
The Company is operating in India which is considered as a single geographical segment.

B. Infarmalion about interest income:

Tarticulars As at 51 March 2012 As at 81 March 2018
Corporate borrowers 40,722,80 26,605.62
Retaii borrowers 104,049,490 7,280.53
Total 144,772,20 33,886.15
Note -48

Related party disclosure
(a) Details of related parties:

Description of relationship Names of related parties
Ultimate holding company Indiabulls Ventures Limited (tili 18 May 2017)
Holding company Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited {¢tilt 18 May 2017}
Indiabulls Ventures Limited (from 19 hMay 201/)
Fellow subsidiary companies Gyansagar Buildtech Limited
(with whom transactions took Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited (from 19 May 2017)
place} Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Key management personnel Mr. Pinank Jayant Shah, Whole Time Director (from 14 September 2017} and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Gagan Banga, Diteclor (lom 22 Maicl 2018)

Mr. Alok Kumar Mishra, Direclor {from 22 March 2018)

Mr. Nafees Ahmed, Director {from 14 September 2017)

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal, Director {from 14 September 2017)

M. Labh Singh Sitara (from 14 September 2017)

Mrs. Preetinder Virk (from 4 December 2018)

Mrs. Manjari Ashok Kacker (till 4 December 2018)

Mr. Ravinder, Whole Time Director (till 14 September 2017}

Mr. Jogender Singh, Whole Time Director (£l 14 September 2017)

Mr. Aishwarya Katoch, Director (till Seplember 14, 2017)

Mr, Sanjeev Kashyap, Director {11l 14 September 2017)

Mr, Divyesh B Shah, Chief Executive Officer and Whole Time Director of Indiabulls Ventures Limited
{b) Statement of iransaclions with related parties during the year:

Holding company Fellow subsidiaries Key management personnel

Far the year For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Particulars

Finance

Loans given

{Maximum balance sutstanding dering the year):
- Gyansagar Buildtech Limited - - - 50334 - -
- Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited - 1,300.00 30,000.00 - - -
Loans faken

(Maximum balance sutstanding during the year):
- Indiabulls Ventures Limited 08,920.00 24,495.00 - - - -
- Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited - 26,250,00 - - - -
Share capital

Issue of equity shares
- Indiabulis Ventutes Limited 257,224 B0 100,276.59 - - - -
Issue of compulsory convertible preference shares
- Indiabulls Distribution Services Limiled - - - 27,500.00 - -
Redemption of compulsory converiible preference
shares

- Indiabulls Distribution Services Limiled - - 27,50{,00 . - -
Employce benefits transfer received/paid{net)
- Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited - - 139,12 - - -
- Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited - - 66.91 - - -
- Indiabuils Ventures Limited 13,83 - - - - -
Deposit for mark to margin account
- Indiabulls Ventures Limited 4254 266.55 - - - -
Contingent liabililies
Fixed deposits pledged
- Indiabulls Ventures Limited 1,100,00 1,200.00 - - /,—»*-“
Corporate guarantees laken 8

- Indiabulls Ventures Limited 143,900.00 310,006,900 - - - g -
Carporate guarantees released I
- Indiabulls Ventures Limited 225,000.00 - - - . -
Interest income \ !
- Gyansagar Buildtech Limited - - - 454 '
- Indjabulls Distribution Services Limited - 8,65 27.12 -




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significani accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All mmoratts in Rs. Iakh unless stated otherwise)

Expenses
Brokerage paid
- Indiabulls Ventures Limited 2559 35.46 - - - -
Interest expense
- Indiabulls Ventures Limited 4,032.51 175.27 - - - -
- Indiabulls Distribution Services Limiled - 58.3( - - - -
Reimbursemenl of expenses paid
- Iadiabulls Ventures Limited - 4092 - B - -
- Indiabuils Distribution Services Limited - - 51.08 - - -
Non convertible debentures issued
- Mr. Gagan banga - - - - 10.09 -
Compensation to key management personnel
- Short term employee benefits
Mr. Pinank Shah - - - - 282115 200.20
Mr. Ravinder - - - - B 3.38
Mr. Joginder Singh - - - - - 3.38
Mr. Alok Mishra - - - - 8.72 -
Mr. Labh Singh Sitara - - - - 7.63 -
Mr. Manjari Kacher - - - - 4.36 .
Mr. Preetinder Virk - - - - 109 "
- Post employee benefits- gratuity
Mr, Pinank Shah - - - - i3.21 1274
- Other long-term benefits- compensated absences
r. Pinank Shah - - - - 12,76 828
- Share based payment expenses
Mr. Pinank Shah - - - - 72748 570113
Mr. Nafees Ahmed - - - - 11091 88.52
Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal - - - - 5.87 92.87

(c) Outstanding at year ended 31 March 201%;

Holding company Fellow Subsidiaries

Nature of transaction Asat As at As at As at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Loans given . - 1,300.00 - - 2,723.38
Loans taken 27,520.00 - - - - -
Equity shares 6,118.80 2,455.16 52190 - - -
Compulsory converiible preference shares - - - - 550.00 -
Securities premium 370,534.35 116,573.19 18,629.86 - 26,950.00 -
Deposit for mark to market margin account 30909 266.55 - - - -
Corporate guarantees taken 228,900.60 310,600.00 - - - -
Fixed deposits pledged {excluding interest accrued) 1,100,00 1,200.00 - - - -

Nofe -49
Bisclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2005;

Trade payables
Particulars As at Asat As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
(i) Principal amount remaining uapaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year - 720 -

(i5) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year - - -
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year - - -
(v} The amount of interest accrued and remaining uapaid at the end of the accounting year - - -
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid

Other payables

Parliculars As at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

(i} Principal amount remaining unpaid to any suppiier as at the end of the accounting year - - -
{ii} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 7

day ki §_ _

{iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year o -

{v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year i—; -

{vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues V4

as above are actually paid O/(',)l ] & -

The above information regarding Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been idéﬁ@%ﬁg}ﬁi@:ﬁsis of information available
a7

with the Company, This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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(All mmonnts in Rs, lakh nnless stated otherwise)

Note - 50
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Particulars Debt securities o tl?:::;‘:nullg:bt] Total

01 April 2017 - - -
Cash flows:

- Repayment - (28,466.88) (28,466.88)
- Proceeds 35,000.00 307,564.00 342,564,060
Non caslu

- Amortisation of upfront fees and others - {L081.44) (1,081.44)
31 March 2018 35,000.00 278,015.68 313,015.68
Cash flows;

- Repayment (646,419.18) (629,275.43) {1,275,694.61)
- Proceeds 786,539.71 894,099.66 1,680,639.37
Non cash: -

- Amoriisation of upfront fees and others (1,634.38) {843.05) (2,477.43)
31 March 2019 173,486.15 541,596.86 715,483.01

(This space has beew infentionatly left blank)
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51 Transferred financial assets

In the course of its finance activily, the Company makes transfers of financial assets, where Jegal rights to the cash flows from the asset are passed to the
counterparly and where the Company retains the rights to the cash flows but assumes a responsibility to transfer them to the counterparty.

The Company has securitized its loan assets to an unrelated and unconsalidated entities. As per the terms of the agreements, the Company is exposed to first
loss default guarantee and cash collateral amounting in range of 14% to 16% of the amount securitised and therefore continues to be exposed to significant risk
and rewards relating to the underlying receivables. Hence, these loan assels are net derecognised and proceeds received are presented as other financial

liability.

The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the transferred financiat assets do not

qualify for derecognition, together with the associated Habilities:

s e As at As at Asat
ecuritisations "
31 March 201% 31 March 2018 1 April 2007

Gross carrying amount of securitised assets 42,157.00 -

Gross carrying amount of associated liabilities 40,828.55 -

Carrying value and fair value of securitised assets 43,111.96 -

Carrying value and fair value of associated liabilities 40,828.55 -

Net position 2,283.41 -

{Tis space has been inlentionaily left bionk)
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Note - 52

A Explanation of transition to Ind AS
These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.
The accounting policies set out in note 3 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019, the comparative information
presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 and in {he preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2017 (the Company’s date
of transition). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows

is set out in the following tables and notes,

Reconciliation of assets and liabilities presented in the balance sheet prepared as per previous GAAP and as per Ind AS as at 31 March 2018

As at 31 March 2018
Particulars Note Previous GAAD* Effect of transition Ind AS
{oInd AS
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 88,235.57 - 88,235.57
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 6,746.49 - 6,746.49
Toans 2and 5 401,420.34 (1,169.14) 400,251,20
Investments 44,882 61 - 44,882 61
Other financial assets 2 1,805.72 (267.21) 1,538.51
Total financial assets 543,090.73 {1,436.35) 541,654.38
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 79970 - 799 7(
Deferred tax assets {net) 8 §0.29 1,087.57 1,167.86
Property, plant and equipment 1,551.04 - 1,551.04
Intangible assets under development 58.04 - 58.04
Other intangible assets 3,074.68 - 3,074.68
Other non-financial assets 2 242574 26132 2,687.06
Total non-financial assets 7,989.49 1,348.89 9,338.38
TOTAL ASSETS 551,080.22 {87.46) 550,992.76
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 679.80 - 679.80
Fayables
Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 7.20 - 7.20
(i) total. outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 2.765.38 ) 2.765.38
enterprises
Other payables
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(id) tota]‘ outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 35909 . 250.99
enterprises
Debt securities 35,000.00 - 35,000.00
Borrowings (other than debt securities) land 7 2750971t (1,081.43) 278,015.68
Others financial liabilities 63,097.96 - 63,097.95
‘T'otal financial liabilities 381,007.44 (1,081.43) 379,926.01
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 689.74 - 689.74
Provisions 221.03 - 221.05
Other non-financial labilities ¥ 1,374.83 {67.56) 1,307.27
‘Total non-financial liabilities 2,285.62 (67.56) 2,218.06
EQUITY
Equity share capital 2,455.16 B 245516
Instruments entirely equity in nature 550.00 - 550.00
Other equity 164,781.99 1,061.54 165,843.53
Total equity 167,787.15 1,061.54 168,848.69
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 551,080.21 (87.45) 550,992.76

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified Lo confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements i.e. basis Division III of Schedule I for the purpose of this note.

After reclassification, effect has been given for transition adjustments.
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amowts in Rs. lakl unless stated otherwise}

Reconciliation of assets and Habilities presented in the balance sheet prepared as per previous GAAP and as per Ind AS as at 1 April 2017

As at1 April 2017
Farticulars Note | previous Gaape | Fffect of transition Ind AS
to Ind AS
ASSETS
Fimancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 145.05 - 145.05
Loans 5 8,961.36 14.80 8,976.16
Investments 3 11,250.00 4.68 11,254.68
Total financial assets 20,356.41 19.48 20,375.89
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (riet) 819.48 - 819.48
Deferred tax assets {net) 8 116.31 17.07 133.38
Property, plant and equipment 070 - 0.70
Other non-financial assets 174.44 - 174,44
Total non-financial assels 1,110.93 17.07 1,128.00
TOTAL ASSETS 21,467.34 36.55 21,503.89
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 0.7 _ 0a7
enterprises
Total financial Iiabilities 0.37 - 0.37
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net} 44.57 - 49,57
Pravisions 9.38 - 9.38
Other non-financial liabilities 549.56 - 549.56
Total non-financial liabilities 608.51 - 608.51
EQUITY
Equity share capital 52150 - 521.90
Other equity 20,336.56 36.55 20,373.11
Total equity - 20,858.46 36.55 20,895.01
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 21,467.34 36.55 21,503.89

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements i.e. basis Division I1I of Schedule 11T for the purpose of this note.
After reclassification, effect has been given for transition adjustments.

{This space las been infentionally left blank)




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited}

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al amounts in Rs. lakh uniess stated otherwise)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income presented in the statement of profit and loss prepared as per previous GAAP and as per Ind AS for

the year ended 31 March 2018

Previous Effect of
Particulars Note transition to Ind AS
GAATP* :
Ind AS

Revenue from operations
Interest income 2 34,187.30 282.39 34,469.69
Dividend income 19,692.44 - 19,692.44
Fees and commission income 2 16,127.32 (4,880.94) 11,246.38
Total revenue from operations 70,007.06 (4,598.55) 65,408.51
Other income 25.59 - 25.59
Total income 70,032.65 (4,598.55) 65,434.10
Expenses
Finance costs land 7 13,679.51 (230.28) 13,449.23
Fees and commission expense 2 2,497.89 (2497.89) -
Net loss on fair value changes 3 15,215.17 4.68 15,219.85
Impairment on financial instruments 5 2,625.50 (137.54) 2,487.96
Employee benefits expenses 2,6and 9 4,219.98 2,205,57 6,425.55
Depreciation and amortisation 560.82 “ 560.82
Other expenses 2and 4 6,255.57 (749.48) 5/506.0%
Total expenses 45,054,442 1,404.94) 43,649,50
Profit before tax 24,978 .21 (3,193.61) 21,7B4.60
Tax expense:
Current tax 5,790.09 - 5,790.09
Deferred tax credit 8 36.02 (1,044.87) {1,008.85}

5,826,11 {1,044.87) 4,761.24
Profit for the year 19,152.10 {2,148.74) 17,003.36
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 9 - (74.05) (74.05)}
Income tax expense relating to above items 8 - 25,63 25.63
Total comprehensive income for the year 19,152.10 {2,197.16) 16,954.94

*The previous GAAFP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements i.e. basis Division 3 of Schedule TII for the purpose

of this note. After reclassification, effect has been given for transition adjustments,

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amonuts in Rs. lakle wnless staled otheriwise}
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Ind AS oplional exemptions

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Ind AS 103 permits a first-time adopler to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its proparty, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the
date of transition te Ind A5, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets
covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Asset. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previcus GAAP
canrying value.

Share based payments

Ind AS 102 Share based payments requires an enlity to recognlise the equily settled share based payment plans based on fair value of the stock options granted to employees instead
of intrinsic value. Ind AS 101 permits 2 first time adopter to ignore such requirement for the options already vested as on transition date that is 1 April 2017. The Company has
elecied to apply this exemptions for such vested options,

Ind AS mandatory exceplions

Estimates

An Company’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to ind AS shall be consistent with estimales made for the same date in accordance with previous
GAAP {after adjustments {o reflect any difference in accounting policies), uniess there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2017 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made In conformity with previous GAAP, The Company made estimates for following
items in accerdance with Ind AS at the date of teansition as these were ot required under previous GAAT:

[nvestment in equity instruments carried at FVTPL or FVOCT

Impairment of financial assets based on expected credil loss modet

Classification and measurement of financial assefs and liabilities

Classification of financial asset is required to be made on the basis of the facis and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. Further, if it is impracticable for the
Company to apply retrospectively the effective interest method in Ind AS 109, the fair value of the financial asset or the financial liability at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be
the new gross carrving ameunt of that financial asset or the new amortised cost of that financial liability at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Reconciliations between previous GAAT and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile total equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The fellowing tables represent the reconciliations from
previeus GAAP to [nd AS.

Reconciliation of tolal equity as at 31 March 2018 and ¥ April 2017
. Asat Asat
Note 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Tatal equity {shareholder's funds) as per previous GAAP 16%,767.15 20,858.46
Adjustments:
Straightlining of rental expense Note 4 67.56 -
Financial assels measuzed at amortised cost Note 2 {1,327.39) -
Financizl liabilities measuzed at amortised cost Note 1 404.72 -
Impact of financial guarantee Note 7 676.71 -
Allowance for expecied credit loss Note 5 15235 14.80
Fair valuation of investments Note 3 - 4.68
Tax impact on above Note 8 1,087.58 17.07
Total adfustments 1,061.53 36.55
Total equity as per Ind AS 168,848.68 20,895.01
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year
. For the year ended
Note 31 March 2016
Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 19,152.10
Adjustments:
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations Note 9 74.065
Measurement of employee share based payments at fair value Note 6 (2,370.97}
Straightlining of rental expense Note 4 67.56
Financial assets measured at amostised cost Note 2 (1,327.39)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost Note | 404,72
Empact of financial guarantee Note 7 {174.44)
Allowance for expected credit loss Note 5 137,54
Fair valuation of invesiments Note 3 (4.68)
Tax impact on above Note 8 1,044.87
Total adjustments {2,148.74)
Profit after fax as per Ind AS 17,003.36
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations Note 9 " (74.05)
Tax impact en above Notc § fm“ 25.63
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS Ny 5 16,954.94
S
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

{All amounts in Rs. lakh unless stated othervise)

3 Impact of Ind AS adoption on statement of cash flows for the year ended on 31 March 2018:

Particulars FPrevious GAAP* Adj ts Ind AS

Net cash flow from operating activity (312,422.40) 19,692.43 (292,729.97)
Net cash flow from investing activity (41,360.79) (19,692.43) (61,033.22)
Net cash flow from firancing activity 441,873,71 - 441,873.71

Net inercasc/{deercase) in cash and cash cquivalent 88,090.52 " 88,090.52
Cash and cash equivalent as at 1 April 2017 145,05 - 145.65
Cash and cash equivafent as at 31 March 2018 §8,23557 - 88,235.57

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirernents i.e. basis Division I of Schedule Ii for the purpose of this note. After

reclassification, effect has been given for transition adjustments.

(Titis space fias been intertionally left blaik)
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amornts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherwise)
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Notes to first time adoption

Borrowings

Under previous GAAT, transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings were charged to statement of profit and loss on straight-line basis over the
peried of berrowing. Under Ind AS, such transaction costs are netted off from the carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These transactions costs
are then recognized in the statement of profit an loss over the tenure of the such borrowings as part of the interest expense by appiying the effective interest rate
methad

Loan assets and securify deposits paid

Under previous GAAP, transaction costs received towards origination of loan assets were charged to statement of profit and foss on straight-line basis over the
period of loan. Under Ind AS, such transaction costs are adjusted from the carrying amount of loans on initial recognition. These transactions costs are then
recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the such loans as part of the interest income by applying the effective interest rate method.

Under previous GAAP, security deposits were inilially recognized at transaction price. Subsequently, finance income was recognized based on contractual terms,
if any. Under Ind AS, such security deposits are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost determined using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between {ransaction price and fair value is recognised in statement of profit and less unless it quantifies for recognition as some
other type of asset.

Financial instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Under previous GAAP, investments in mutual funds were carried at cost or market value whichever is lower, Under Ind AS, such investments are carried at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Lease equalisation reserve

Under the previous GAAP, the lease payments under operating leases were recognised as expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. As per Ind A5 17,
lcase paymenls are not recognised on a straightl line basis if payinenls o the lessul ate sttucluted lo indease In Hie with expected general inflation lo
compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. However, straight line impact is charged only to the extent of rent free period. Hence, iease
equalization reserve pertaining to operating lease agreements has been reversed and credited 1o equity as on transition date except for the impact on account of
rent free period.

Impairment of loan assets
Under previous GAAP, the Company has created impairment allowance on loan assets basis the provisioning norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of India ('RBI").
Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on expected credit loss ('ECL') model .

Share based payment
Under the previous GAAD, the Company had the option to measure the cost of equity-settled employee share-based plan either using the intrinsic value method
or using the fair value method. Under Ind A3, the cost of equity-settled share-based plan is recognized based on the fair value of the options as at the grant date.

Financial guarantee

Under previous GAAP, recipient of financial guarantees were disclosing this as part of security details for borrowings, Under Ind AS, such financial guarantee
contracts are recognised as financial liability. The Hability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently charged to statement of profit and loss over the
period of the underitying borrowing.

Tax impact on adjustments
Retained earnings and statement of profit and loss has been adjusted consequent to the Ind AS transition adjustments with corresponding impact to deferred tax,
wherever applicable.

Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all itemns of income and expense recognised in a pericd should be inciuded in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits
otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as ‘other comprehensive
income” inciudes re-measurements of defined benefit plans. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

(This space las been intentionally Ieft Blank)




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significan! accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al mmownits i Rs. lakl upless stated othervise)

Note -53

Schedule in terms of Annex II of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking

Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019:

Parliculars

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Liabilities side: Amoont

Quistanding

Amount
Overdue

Amount
Qulstanding

Amount
Overdue

(1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not
paid:
: Becured
: Unsecured -
{other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b) Deferred credits
{c) Term loans
{d) Loan from related parties
(e) Commercial paper
(f) Other loans
- Loan repayable on demand
- Vehicle loan

{a) Debentures

79,281.80

500,495.53
27,520.00
95,000.00

14,729.66
47,32

10,009.32
277,961.81

25,000.00

58.65

Assets side:

Amount
oulstanding
as af
31 March 2019

Amount
outstanding
as at
31 March 2018

{2) Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:
{a) Secured
{b) Unsecured
Less: Impairment loss allowance

Total

{3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assels counfing towards AFC aclivities
() Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
{a) Financial lease
{b) Operating lease
(ii} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
{a) Assets on hire
{b) Repossessed Assets
(iii} Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a} Loans where assets have been repossessed
{b) Loans ather than (a) above

(4) Break-up of Investments ;
1. Quoted:
(i) Shares; {a) Equity

(b) Preference
{if) Debentures and bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

{iv) Government securities

{w) Cihers {please specify)

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: () Equity

{b} Preference
{ii} Debentures and boruds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

{iv) Government securities

{v} Investment in associate

446,083.42
567,217.22
{12,487.33)

188,663.59
213,089.16
{1,501.55)

1,050,813.31

2,617.51

55,045.87

400,251.20

37,644.47

(This space las beew intentionally left blank)
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INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and cther explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(AN mmownis i Rs. laklt wirless stated otherioise)

{All amounts in Rs. unless stated otherwise}
(5) Borrower group-wise classification of all assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

Category Amount {net of allowance for impairment loss)
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Sectued Unsecured Sceured Unsecured
1. Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - . -
(c) Other related parties - - - -
2. Other than related parties 490,257.45 560,555,856 187,958.46 212,292.74
Total 490,257.45 560,555.86 187,958.46 212,292.74
(6) Investor group-wise classificafion of all investments (cwarent and long ferm) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):
Category As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Market Value Book Value Market Value Book Value
(net of allowarnce (net of allowance
for impairment for impairment
loss) loss)
1. Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - - -
(b) Companies i the same group - - - -
(c) Other related parties 3,570.43 3,570.43 - -
2, Other than related parties 57,663.38 57,663.38 44,882.61 44,882.61
Total 61,233.81 61,233.81 44,882,61 44,882.61
{7) Other information:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(I} Gross non-performing assels
{a) Related parties - -
{b) Other than related parties 8,412.93 207.97
(IT} Net non-performing assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b} Other than related parties 2,631.39 46.89

(I11) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Disclosures in terms of Paragraph 9.6 read with Annexure 4 of Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFC dated 10 November 2014 vide circular no. RBE/2014-15/299

DNBR (PD) CC.No.002/03.10.001/2014-15:

(i) Disclosure for capital to risk assels ralio (CRAR):-

Items

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

() CRAR (%)
{ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital {%)
{iif) CRAR - Tier IT Capital (%}

37.70%
37.12%

0.58%

33.52%
33.25%
0.27%

(ii) Exposure to real esfate sector-

Calegary

Asat
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Direct exposure

(i) Residential morlgages:
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be accupied by the borrower or that is rented

(ii) Commercial real estate*;

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises,
multi-family residential buildings, muléi-tenanted commercial premises, industriat or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,
development and construction, etc.}. Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) Limnits;

{iif} Investments in morlgage backed securities {MB5) and other securitised exposures:
a. Residential

b. Commercial real estate

m
\, 7

485,294.53

186,206.00

* as per contraciual receivables at balance sheet date,
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INDEABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(AN amronnits in Rs. lakh nnless stated atieruise)

(iii} Expusure to capifal markeis*

Particalars Asat As at

31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
i direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the 34,818,37 20,222.86
corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
ii. advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securilies or on clean basis Lo snclividuals for investment in shares - -
(including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented matual funds;
iii. advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented 1,751.8% 1,721.54
mutual funds are taken as primary security;
iv, advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible - -
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;
v. secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guaraniees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers; - -
vi. loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for - -
meeting promoter's contribution to the equily of new companies in anticipation of raising resources;
vii. bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; - -
viii. all exposures to venture capital funds (both registered and unregistered) - -
Total exposure 36,570,26 21,944.40

* as per contractual receivables at balance sheet date,

{iv)} Malurity pattern of assels and liabilities as at 31 March 2019;
In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI") guidelines for Assets Liability Management System in NBFC, the maturity pattern of Assets and Liabilities has
been estimated based on the behavioural pattern of assets and liabilities on the basis of past data available with the Company.

1day to 30/31 | Over one month |OQver 2 months to Over3tob Over 6 moenths lo| Over1 fo 3 years [ Over 3 to 5 years| Over 5 years

days (1 month) to 2 months 3 months months 1 year
Liabilities
Borrowings from 14,939.79 5,533.88 12,682.9¢ 163,772.90 58,727.88 165,973.81 92,117.70 728.00
banks
Market - 70,000,00 25,000.00 - - 56,471.51 49,534.35 -
borrowings
Assets
Advances 37,036.33 39,010.98 39,650.91 119,778.12 222,900.67 505,964.13 91,810.35 7,129,16
Investments 26,415.45 31,247.95 - - - - - 3,570.43
Maturity pattern of assels and liabilities as at 31 March 2018:

1day to 30/31 | Over one month | Over 2 months to Over3te 6 |Over 6 months to] Over1 Lo 3 years | Over 3 to 5 years| Over 5 years

days (1 month) to 2 months 3 months months 1year
Liabilities
Borrowings from .91 0.91 1,724.98 26,629.99 4,699.04 131,628.84 113,331.02 -
banks
Market - - 25,000 - 16,000 - . -
borrowings
Assets
Advances 7,765.34 11,418.61 6,462.25 21,122.52 47,929.25 167,789.52 84,537.27 54,728.00
Investments - - 25,000.00 12,644.47 7,238.14 - -~
Note -54

Additional disciosures in terms of Annexure 4 of RBI Revised Regulatory Framework DNBR {(PD) CC.No.002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated 10 November 2014;

i, Investments

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2019

Asat
31 March 2018

Value of

A. Gross value of investments

a) In India
b) Outside India

Provision for depreciation

a) In India
b) Cutside India

Net value of investments

a) In India
by Cutside India

8, Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.
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61,233.51

61,233.81

44,882.61

44,882.61

§ [=]
\DZ
.57y

i

?/

YTV

]

i




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

{(Farmerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All aniounts in Rs. lakh unless stated otherise)

ii. Disclosures relating to derivatives:

The Company has no investment in forward rate agreement / interest rate swaps / exchange traded interest rate (IR) derivatives during the year, (31 March 2018: Rs.
Nil)

iii. Disclosures relating to securitisation:

The Company has entered into vatious agreements for the securilisalion of loans with assignees, wherein it has securitised a part of ils loans portfolic amounting to
Rs. 40,828.55 lakh as at 31 March 2019 (Rs. Nil upto 31 Masch 2018 and Rs. Nil upto 1 April 2017), being the amount outstanding as on the date of balance sheet.

The Company has entered into various agreements for the assignments of loans with assignees, wherein it has assigned a part of its loans portfolic amounting to Rs.
60,648.15 lakh as at 31 March 2019 (Rs. Nil upto 31 March 2018 and Rs. Nil upta 1 April 2017}, being the principal value outstanding as on the date of the assignment
transaction, In terms of accounting policy mentioned in significant accounting policies, the Company has derecognised these loan portfolios,

The Company is responsible for collection and getting servicing of this loan portfolic en behalf of investors/buyers. In terms of the said securitisation/ assignment
agreements, the Company pays o investor/buyers on agreed date basis the prorata collection amount as per individual agreement terms.

a. Ouistanding amounti of securitised assets as per beoks of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC and total amount of exposure refained by the NBFC as on the date of

balance sheet towards the Minimum Retention Requirements (MRR)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

1. No of SPVs spansored by the NBFC for securitisation fransactions 3.40 -

2. Tolal amount of securitised assets as per books of ST'Vs sponsored 44,828.55 -

3. Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC towards the MRR as on the date of balance sheet -

i) Off-balance sheet expostires towards credit concentration

- First loss “ -

- Others - -

ii) On-balance sheet exposures towards credil concentration

- Cash collateral (inclusive of accrued interest) 6,212.44 -

- Others - -

4. Amount of expoesures lo securitisation ransactions other than MRR

i) Off-halance sheet exposures towards credit concentration - -

ii) On-balance sheet expesures towards credit concentration - -

b. Details of Financial assets sold to Securitisation/Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018

i} No. of accounts B -

i) Aggregale value (net of provisions} of accounts sold to SC/RC - -

iif} Aggregate consideration - -

iv) Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - -

v) Aggregate gain/loss over net beok value - -

e. Defails of Assignment fransactions undertaken by NBFCs

Parficulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 | 3% March 2018

i), Mo, of accounts {nes) 345.00 -

ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts assigned 60,648.15 -

iii) Aggregate consideration 60,648.15 -

iv) Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - -

v) Apgrerate pain/loss over net book value - -

d. Details of non-performing assels purchased:

Tarticulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

i). No. of accounts soid - -

i) Aggregate outstanding - -

iii) Aggrepate consideration received - -

Details of non-performing assels sold:

Tarticulars Year ended Year ended

e ——— 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

1) No. of accounts soid. \’\S’ - u""‘“-!/}/o - -

iiy Aggregate outstanding / 0/\00 - -

iii) Aggregate consideration received o O - -




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Suinmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(AT amounts in Rs. Inkit winless stated otiterzoise)

iv. Registration under other regulators
The Company is not registered under any other regulator other than Reserve Bank of India.

v, Penalties imposed by RBI and other Regulators
No penalties have been imposed by RBI during the financial year 2018-19 (FY 2017-18 - NIL).

vi. Details of financing of parent company products
There is no financing during the current year.

vii. Details of Single Borrower Limils (SBL) / Group Borrower Limits (GBL} exceeded
The Company has not exceeded the single borrower limit as set as Reserve Bank of India,

viii. Unsecured advances
The Company has given loans against shares amounting to Rs 1,776,73 Jakhs (32 March 2018: Rs 1,728.29 lakhs)

ix. Draw down from reserves
The Company has made no drawdown from reserves.

x. Provision and contingencies

For the year For the year

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies shown under the head expenditure in statement of profit and Ioss ended ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Provision for depreciation on investment - -
Provision towards non-performing asscts 578154 167.08
Provision mace towards income tax [net of advance tax] - 689.74
Other provision and contingencies (with details)
i) Provision for compensated absences 157.15 4857
ii} Provision for gratuity 247,32 60.75
Provision for Standard assets 6,705.79 1,334.47
xi. Concentration of advances, exposures & NPA's*
a. Concentrafion of advances
Particulars Asat Asal

31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers* ,685.41 40,179.51
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the NBFC 6.65% 10.00%
* as per contractual receivables at balance sheet date,
b. Concentration of exposures
Parliculars Asat As at

31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers* 596,318.74 40,179.51
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers to total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers 5.30% 10.00%
* as per contractual receivables as per balance sheet date,
c. Conceniration of NPA's
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Total exposure to fop four NPA accounts* 1,117.47 161.2%
* as per contrachzal receivables as per balance sheet date.
d. Sector-wise distribution of NPA's*
Particulars Percentage of NNPA's to

total advances
Asat As af

31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Agriculture & allied activities - -
MSME - -
Corparate borrowers 0.06% 0.02%
Services 0.05% 0.03%
Unsecured personal loans 0.14% -
Auto loans - -
Other personal loans - -

* as per contractual receivables as per balance sheet date,




INDIABULLS CONSUMER FINANCE LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVL Finance Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanalory information for the year ended 3% March 2019

(All mmounls in Rs, Iakit unless sinded oflieruise)
xii. Movement of NPAs

FParticulars As at As at
31 March 2019 3% March 2018
a, Net NPAs to Net Advances (% 0.25%, 0.01%,
b. Opening gross NPA 207.97 -
Add : Addition during the year 8,204.96 207.97
Less: Upgraded during the year - -
Less: Recoveries during the year - -
Less: Write off - -
Closing Gross NTA 8,412.93 207.97
c. Opening Net NPAs 40.89 -
Add: Addition during the year 2,550.50 40.89
Less: Upgraded during the vear - -
Less: Recoveries during the year - -
Less: Write off - -
Closing Net NPAs 2,631.39 40.89
d. Movement of provisions [or NPA
Opening balance 167,08 -
Provision made during the year 5,614.46 167.08
Write off/write back of excess provisions - -
Less: Write off - -
Closing balance 5,781,654 167.08
xiif. OQverseas assels
There are no overseas asset owned by the Company.
xiv. Off-balance Sheet 5PVs sponsored
There are no SPVs which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms.
xv. The Company has been assigned the following credit ratings:
Instruments Asat As af
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Non- convertible debentures CARE AA; Stable CARE AA; Stable
[Double A; Outlook: Stable] [Double A; Outlook: Stable]
BWR AA+/Stable -
Coemmercial papers CARE Al+ {A One plus) CARE Al+ {A One plus)
BWR Al+ BWR Al+
CRISIL A1+ -
ICRA Al+ .
Bank borrowings CARE AA; Stable/Care Al+ CARE AA; Stable/Care Al+
[Double A; Outlock: Stable/ A One | [Double A; Cutlook: Stable/ A One
Plus] Plus}
BWR AA+/Stable -
xv. Customer complainis
Parficulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 1 -
No. of complaints received during the year 211 59
No. of complaints redressed during the year 20% 58
No. of complaints pending at the end of the vear 3 1

(This space s been intentionally left blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanalory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All muortts in Rs. lakir unless stated otheruise)

Note - 55

Employee stock option schemes:

The employees of the Company have been granted option as per the existing schemes of Indiabulls Ventures Limited ('Holding Company'). On exercise, the employess will be
aflotted shares of the Holding Company. The Company has accounted for charge related to its employees amounting to Rs. 3,453.69 lakhs (31 March 2018 Rs, 2,370.97 lakhs)
with a corresponding credit to equity.

a) Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2008

During the financial year ended 31 March 2009, the Indiabulls Veatures Limited {The Holding Company”) had issued an Employee Stock Option Scheme titled “Employee
Stock Option Scheme - 2008” in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (“SEBI Guidelines”).

Under the Scheme, the Holding Company was authorised to grant 20,000,000 Equity settled options {o eligible employees including its directors (other than promoter
directors) and employees of its subsidiary companies including their directors, All options under the Scheme ate exercisable for Equity Shares of the Holding Cormnpany.
Employees covered by the plan were granted an option o purchase shares of the Holding Company subject to the requirements of vesting.

A Compensation Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the Helding Company administered the plan. The Compensation Committee had granted, under the
"Indiabulls Ventures Limited Employees Stack Option Scheme - 2008" {“IBVL ESOP - 2008”), 20,000,000 stock options representing an equal number of equity shares of face
value Rs. 2 each in the Holding Company, to the cligible employees, at an exercise price of Rs. 17.40 per equity share, being the Jatest available closing matket price on the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, as on 23 January 2009. The stack options so granted, shall vest in the eligible employees over a period of 10 years beginning from 25
January 2010 besng the first vesting date. 1he ophions granted under each of the slabs, can be exercised by the grantees within a period of five years [rom Lhe relevant vesting
date,

Further, during the year ended 31 March 2017, the Compensation Committee had regranted 9,700,800 stock options (surrendered and lapsed options eligible for regrant)
Tepresenting an equal number of equity shares of face value Rs. 2 each in the Holding Company, to the eligible employees, at an exercise price of Rs, 24.15 per equity share,
being the latest available closing market price on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, as on 30 june 2016. The stock options so granted, shall vest uniformly over a
period of § years beginning frem 02 july 2017, the first vesting date. The options vesied under each of the slabs, can be exercised within a period of five years from the
relevant vesting date.

Further, during the year ended 31 March 2018, the Compensation Committee has regranted 500,000 and 880,600 stock options (surrendered and lapsed aptions eligidle for

regzant) representing an equal number of equilty shares of face value Rs. 2 each in the Holding Cempany, to the eligible employees, at an exercise price of Rs. 219.65 per equity
share and Rs. 254.85 per equity share, respectively, baing the latest available closing market price on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, as on 31 August 2017 and
23 March 2018, respectively. The stack options so granied, shall vest uniformly over a period of 5 years beginning from 2 September 2018 and 25 March 2019 respectively, the

first vesting date, the options vested under each of the slabs, can be exercised within a period of five years from the relevant vesting date.
IBVL ESOP - 2008

20,000,000 9,700,000 500,060 880,600
Options Oplions Options Options
Regranled Regranted Regranfed
1. Exercise price {Rs.) 17.40 2415 219.65 254.85
2. Expected volatility * 79.00% 42.97% 46.70% 47.15%
3. Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date Nil Nil il Nil
4. Option Life (weighted average) (in years) 11 6 6 6
5. Expected Dividends yield 22.99% 10.82% 1.27% 1.106%
6, Risk Free Interest rate 6.50% 745% 6.54% 7.56%
7. Fair value of the options ** 0.584 4.31 106.31 130,05

* The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility data.
** Fair vaiue of the options is computed using the Black Scholes Merton Option Pricing Model and is cedtified by an independent firm of Chartered Accountants.

b ) Employees Stack Oplion Scheme - 2009

During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the Holding Company had issued Employee Stock Option Scheme titled as ‘Indiabulls Ventures Limited Employees Stock
Optior: Scheme « 2009" ("IBVL ESOP - 2009"}. Under the Scheme, the Helding Company was authorised to grant 20,000,000 options, representing equivalent number of equity
shares of face value Rs. 2 each in one or mare tranches at a price and on such texms and conditions as may be decided by the Compensation Committee, to the eligible
employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year eaded 31 March 2010, the Compensation Committee constituled granted 10,000,000 stock options representing an equal number of Equity Shares of face value
Rs. 2 each in the Holding Company, at an exercise price of Rs. 35.25 per equity share, being the Iatest available closing market price on the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited, as on 30 November 2009. The stock aptions so granted, shalt vest uniformly over 10 years beginning from 2 December 2010 being the first vesting date, The option
granted under each of the slabs, can be exercised within a period of five years from the relevant vesting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Compensation Conunitiee had further granted 2,050,000 Stock Options representing an equal number of equity shares of face value
Rs. 2 each in the Holding Company, at an exercise price of Bs. 31.35 per equity share, being the latest available closing market price on the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited, as on 09 April 2010. As the options have been granted at intrinsic value, there is no employee stock compensation expense on account of the same. The Stock Qptons
s granted, shall vest uniformly over 10 years beginning from 13 April 2011 being the first vesting date, The options granted under each of the slabs, can be exercised within a
period of five years from the relevant vesting date,

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Compensation Comuitlee had regranted under the IBVE, ESOP - 2009 10,000,000 stock options (susrendered and lapsed options
eligille for regrant) representing an equal number of equity shares of face value of Rs, 2 each in the Holding Company, at an exercise price of Rs, 27.45 per equity share, being
the latest available closing market price on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, as on 24 August 2015, ‘The stock options so granted, shall vest uniformly over a
period of 5 years beginning from 26 August 2016, the first vesting date. The options vested under each of the slabs, can be exercised within a period of five years from the
relevant vesting date. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Helding Company had received the request from various option holders to surrender 10,800,006 stock
eptions, which has been accepted by the Holding Cempany.

During the vear ended 31 March 2017, the Compensation Committee had further regranted 9,500,000 arid 10,000,000 Stock Options (s;}}gre::t;dg?ﬁs%?nd&:psed options eligible
for regrant) representing an equal number of equity shares of face value Rs, 2 each in the Holding Company, to the Eligible Emp]oye;s,e&‘ (exer sz{/ijp e of Bs, 16 per equity
share and Rs. 24.15 per equity share, respectively, being the latest avaitable closing market price on the National Stock Exchange gidngid Limited, & %11 May 2016 and 30
June 2026, As the options have been granted at inirinsic value, there is no employee stock compensation expense on account of the8gme, The stock options so granted, shall

vest uniformly over a perivd of § years beginning from 13 May 2017 and 02 July 2017 respectively, the first vesting date. The (:irlip vested under each of the slabs, can be
exercised within a period of five years from the relevant vesting date. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Holding Co ! has received thejrequest from various
aption holders to surrender 10,000,000 stock options, which has been accepted by the Holding Company. 'ab%_
kY .
N
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(All antotanls i Rs. Inkh unless stated ctherwise)

Nole - 55 (conlinued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Compensation Committee has regranted 10,000,000 and 669,400 Stack Options (surrendered and Japsed options eligible for regrant)
representing an equal number of Equity Shares of face vatue Rs. 2 each in the Holding Company, to the Eligible Employees, at an exercise price of Rs. 219,65 per equity share
and Rs. 254.85 per equity share, respectively, being the latest available closing market price on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, as on 3 August 2017 and 23
March 2018 respectively. As the options have been granted at intrinsic value, there is no employee stock compensation expense on account of the same. The stock options so
granted, shall vest uniformly over a period of § years beginning from 2 September 2018 and 25 March 2019 respectively, the first vesting date, the options vested under each of
the slabs, can be exercised within a period of five years from the relevant vesting date.

IBVL ESCP - 2009

10,000,000 2,050,000 10,000,600 9,500,000 10,000,000 10,009,000 669,400
Options Options Options Options Options Options Options
Regranted & Regranted Regranted & Regranted Regranted
Surrendered Surrendered
1, Exercise price (Rs.) 35.25 31.35 2745 16 2415 219.65 254.85
2. Expecled volatility * 077 0.4896 0.385% 0.4074 0.4297 0467 0.4715
3. Expected forfeiture Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
percentage on each
vesting date
4. Oplion life 10 Years 10 Years 7 Years 6 Years 6 Years 6 Years 6 Years
{weighted average)
5. Expected dividends 13.48% 6.86% 9.16% 16.33% 10.82% 1.27% 1.10%
yield
6, Risk frec inlerest rate 7.50% 8.05% 6.50% 745% 7.45% 6.54% 7.56%
7. Fair value of the 6.48 9.39 4.77 1.38 431 106.31 130.05

options (Rs,J**

* The expected volatilily was determined based on historical volatility data.
** Fair value of the options is computed using the Black Scholes Merton Option Pricing Model and is certified by an independent firm of Chartered Accountants.
The Company has recognised employee stock compensation expense of Rs. 3,453.69 lakhs (31 March 2018L Rs. 2,370.97 lakhs) in the statement of Profit and loss for the year

ended 31 March 2019.

The other disclosures in respect of the above stock option schemes are as under:

Total options under the scheme (Nos.)

Options granted (Nos.)

Vesting period and percentage

Vesting date

Exercise price (Rs.)

Qutstanding as at 1 April 2017 (Nos.}

Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.)

Onptions vested during the year (Nos)*

Exercised during the year (Nps.)

Surrendered and eligibie for re-grant during the year {Nos.)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2018 (Nos.)

Options vested during the year (Nos.)*

Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year {Nes.)
Quistanding as at 31 March 2019 (Nos.)

Vested and exercisable at the end of the year (Nos.)
Remaining coatractual life (weighted months)

IBVL ESOP - 2008

20,000,000
20,000,000 9,700,000 500,000 880,600
{Regrant) (Regrant) {Regrant)
Ten years,

1st Year - 15%
2nd year to 9th year
- 10% each year
10th year - 5%

January 25" each
year, commencing,
25 January 2010

17.40
1,526,316

220,400
28,050
1,277,866
406,550
B70,916
870,916
49

Unifermly overa
period of five years

July 2™ each year,
commencing
2 July 2017

2415
9,700,000
1,940,000
4,700,000
1,940,000
9,700,100
3,880,000

63

- Weighted average exercise price of share during the year ended 31 March 2019: not applicable (31 March 2018: Rs, 59.77).

A

TN

,ﬁ?mw

.
)

Uniformly over a
peried of five years

September 2™ each
year, commencing
2 September 2018

219.65

500,000

500,000
100,600
77

Uniformly over a
period of five years

March 25" each
year, cnmmencing
25 March 2619

254.85

880,600
880,600
187,000
693,600
138,720

84
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Note - 55 {Continued)

IBVL ESOT - 2009
Total options under the
Scheme (Nos.) 20,000,000
10,600,000 10,000,000
Options granted (Nos.) 10,000,000 2,405,000 (Regrant & (91’15&90’::3 {Regrant & t?{‘emﬂ;m:;] (g':g'ﬁ)
Surrendered) Br Surrendered) pran &

Vesting period and Uniformly over a Unifermly over a Uniformly overa Uniformly over a Uniformly over a Uniformly over a Uniformly cver a
percentage period of ten years  period of ten years  period of five years  period of five years  periad of five years  period of five years  period of five years

Uecember 2™ each April 13 each Auvgust26®each  May73%eachyear,  July2™eachyear,  September2™each  March 25th each
Vesting date yedr, commencing  year, commencing  year, commencing commencing 13 commencing 2 July  year, commencing  year, commencing

2 Becember 2010 13 April 2011 26 August 2016 May 2017 2017 2 September 2018 25 March 2019
Exercise price (Rs.} 35.25 31.35 2745 16.00 2415 219.65 754.85
Ouistanding as at 1 April - 450,000 - 9,153,000 - - -
2017 (Nos.}
Granted/ regranted durning - - - - - 10,000,000 669,400
the year (Nos.)
Options vested during the - 50,000 - 1,830,600 - - -
year (Nos.)*
Exercised during the year - 300,000 - 1,758,100 - - -
{Nos.)
Surrendered and eligible for - - - 242,400 - 30,000 -
re-grant during the year
(Nos.)
Qulstanding as at 31 March - 150,060 - 7,152,504 - 9,970,000 669,400
2018 (Nos.)
Options vested during the - 50,000 - 1,830,600 - - -
year {Nos.)*
Surrendered and efigible for - - - 664,800 - 90,000 450,000
re-grant during the year
(Nos)
Ouistanding as af 31 March - 150,000 - 6,487,700 - 9,850,000 219,400
2019 (Nos.)
Exercisable at the end of the - 30,000 - 1,676,300 - 1,976,000 43,880
year {Nos.)
Remaining contractual life - o0 - 67 - 77 84
(weighted months)

* Net of options surrendered before vesting.

- Weighted average exercise price of share during the year ended 32 March 2019: not applicable (31 March 2018: Rs. 121.14).

(This space has been intentionally Ileft blank,
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Note -56
In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 124 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to be credited ko the Investor Education and Prote
Fund as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: Rs. nil; T April 2017: Rs. nil).

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors
Chartered Accountants

h

\3 .
{ = :‘f Pinank Jayant Shah pehan 8 Wlanish Rustagi
Partner 1= & Whole Time Director & wigector Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: = Chief Executive Officer DIR: 03496241
DIN: 07859798
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Gurugram

Date: 25 April 2019 Date: 25 April 2019 Date: 25 April 2019
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